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PC MALL, INC.
PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(unaudited, in thousands, except per share amounts and share data)
June 30,
2012

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $1,352 and $1,642
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Deferred income taxes
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Deferred income taxes
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Other assets
Total assets

$

$

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Deferred revenue
Line of credit
Notes payable — current
Total current liabilities
Notes payable and other long-term liabilities
Deferred income taxes
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 30,000,000 shares authorized; 14,408,126 and 14,368,888 shares issued;
and 12,034,942 and 11,995,704 shares outstanding, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Treasury stock, at cost: 2,373,184 shares at each period
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Retained earnings
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
2

$

December 31,
2011

8,558
195,318
76,420
12,773
3,741
296,810
46,013
327
25,510
8,396
2,247
379,303

$

128,356
28,101
14,786
71,753
974
243,970
16,761
5,606
266,337

$

$

—

$

14
109,204
(9,733)
2,292
11,189
112,966
379,303

9,484
207,985
79,456
9,681
3,937
310,543
44,745
247
25,510
9,840
2,387
393,272

122,523
31,797
18,079
91,852
1,015
265,266
11,574
5,606
282,446
—

$

14
108,061
(9,733)
2,256
10,228
110,826
393,272
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PC MALL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(unaudited, in thousands, except per share amounts)
Three Months Ended
June 30,
2012
2011

Net sales
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Revaluation of earnout liability
Operating profit
Interest expense, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net income

$

362,593
314,087
48,506
45,256
(175)
3,425
909
2,516
1,085
1,431

$

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Common Share
Basic
Diluted

$

0.12
0.12

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

12,032
12,166

$

$

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2012

361,910
315,524
46,386
44,605
(800)
2,581
835
1,746
710
1,036

$

0.08
0.08
12,405
12,750

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
3

$

$

$

2011

704,939
609,661
95,278
91,899
(175)
3,554
1,840
1,714
753
961

0.08
0.08
12,016
12,221

$

$

$

697,848
607,993
89,855
86,159
(800)
4,496
1,558
2,938
1,175
1,763

0.14
0.14
12,318
12,679
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PC MALL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(unaudited, in thousands)
Three Months Ended
June 30,
2012

Net income
Comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Total other comprehensive income (loss)
Comprehensive income

Six Months Ended
June 30
2011

$

1,431

$

(152)
(152)
1,279

1,036

$

56
56
1,092

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
4

2012

$

2011

$

961

$

36
36
997

$

1,763

$

248
248
2,011
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PC MALL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(unaudited, in thousands)
Additional
Paid-inCapital

Common Stock
Outstanding
Amount

Balance at December 31, 2011
Stock option exercises,
including related income tax benefit
Stock-based compensation expense
Net Income
Translation adjustments
Balance at June 30, 2012

11,996 $

14 $

108,061

39
—
—
—
12,035 $

—
—
—
—
14 $

92
1,051
—
—
109,204

Treasury
Stock

Retained
Earnings

Total

$

(9,733) $

2,256 $

10,228 $

110,826

$

—
—
—
—
(9,733 ) $

—
—
—
36
2,292 $

—
961
—
11,189 $

92
1,051
961
36
112,966

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income
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PC MALL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(unaudited, in thousands)
Six Months Ended
June 30,
2012

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for deferred income taxes
Net tax benefit related to stock option exercises
Excess tax benefit related to stock option exercises
Non-cash stock-based compensation
Decrease in earnout liability
Gain on sale of fixed assets
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Deferred revenue
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of El Segundo building
Purchases of property and equipment
Acquisition of eCost
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Net (payments) borrowings under line of credit
Capital lease proceeds
Borrowing under note payable
Payments under notes payable
Change in book overdraft
Payments of obligations under capital lease
Proceeds from stock issued under stock option plans
Payment for deferred financing costs
Excess tax benefit related to stock option exercises
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
Effect of foreign currency on cash flow
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period
Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Supplemental Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities
Purchase of infrastructure system
Deferred financing costs
See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$

$

2011

961

$

1,763

6,302
2,015
—
(39)
1,051
(175)
—

4,619
620
2
(660)
1,062
(800)
(15)

10,774
3,036
(3,053)
51
8,303
(4,602)
(3,293)
20,370
21,331

4,917
5,327
(1,956)
(100)
(29,497)
(532)
6,601
(10,412)
(8,649)

—
(5,082)
—
—
(5,082)

(9,565)
(5,194)
(2,284)
23
(17,020)

(20,099)
4,356
2,859
(552)
(2,744)
(1,123)
92
—
39
(17,172)
(3)
(926)
9,484
8,558

5,769
—
7,198
(368)
7,660
(526)
665
(25)
660
21,033
(58)
(4,694)
10,711
6,017

$

$

1,638
969

$

1,346
3,648

$

346
—

$

2,070
49
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PC MALL, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
1. Basis of Presentation and Description of Company
PC Mall, Inc. is a leading value added direct marketer of technology products, services and solutions to businesses, government and educational
institutions and individual consumers. We go to market through our dedicated sales force of over 700 account executives. We also offer our products,
services and solutions through our field service teams, various direct marketing techniques and a limited number of retail stores. Since our founding in 1987,
we have served our customers in part by offering them multi-branded hardware solutions from leading brands including HP, Apple, Cisco, Microsoft and
Lenovo. Through us, these and other manufacturers are able to reach multiple customer segments including consumers, small and medium sized businesses,
large enterprise businesses, as well as state, local and federal governments and educational institutions. We add additional value to our manufacturer partners
by being able to sell, deliver and incorporate their products and services into comprehensive solutions with a high degree of customization. Our model also
facilitates an efficient supply chain and support mechanism for manufacturers by using a combination of direct marketing, centralized selling and support,
and centralized product fulfillment.
We have prepared the unaudited consolidated financial statements included herein pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) and in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, or GAAP, which requires us to make
estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported herein. We base our estimates and assumptions on historical experience and on various other factors
that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making estimates, our actual results reported in future
periods may be affected by changes in those estimates. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in
accordance with GAAP have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations for interim financial reporting. In the opinion of management,
all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring items which are necessary for a fair presentation, have been included. The results for interim periods are
not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for any other interim period or for the full year. These unaudited consolidated financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 filed with the SEC on March 15, 2012, our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,
2012 filed with the SEC on May 10, 2012, and all of our other periodic filings, including Current Reports on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC after the end of our
2011 fiscal year and through the date of this report.
In conjunction with our eCost.com acquisition, which is discussed in detail below, beginning with the first quarter of 2011, our management considered
the OnSale and eCOST businesses together as a separate segment and reported their results accordingly. As such, in 2011, existing sales under the OnSale
brand were no longer reported under the MacMall segment and we had five operating segments: SMB, MME, Public Sector, MacMall and OnSale.
In the first quarter of 2012, we determined that certain product sales in a daily deal format marketed under our OnSale segment’s daily deal business can
do considerably better than in a traditional ecommerce catalog format. As this “daily deal” market and its related customer buying behaviors have continued
to evolve, the “daily deals” business model is rapidly expanding to include sales of IT products. In response to these developments, we determined that our
strategic objectives can be best achieved by incorporating the best practices, technologies and methodologies we have developed in our stand alone “daily
deals” business into our traditional eCommerce platform and no longer operating a stand alone “daily deals” business. As a result, and in order to take
advantage of this opportunity, we have determined that we will no longer operate a stand-alone “daily deals” business under OnSale. Instead, we have taken
the best practices and technology we have developed in the OnSale daily deals business and incorporated them into our overall eCommerce offering.
Beginning in the first quarter of 2012, we restored operating and reporting of the OnSale and MacMall businesses within a single segment. As a result, we
now have four operating segments: SMB, MME, Public Sector and MacMall/OnSale. We include corporate related expenses such as legal, accounting,
information technology, product management, certain support services and other administrative costs that are not otherwise allocated to our reportable
operating segments in Corporate and Other. All historical segment financial information provided herein has been revised to reflect these new reportable
operating segments.
During the three months ended June 30, 2012, we generated approximately 41% of our revenue in our MME segment, 32% of our revenue in our SMB
segment, 16% of our revenue in our MacMall/OnSale segment and 11% of our revenue in our Public Sector segment. During the six months ended June 30,
2012, we generated approximately 41% of our revenue in our MME segment, 33% of our revenue in our SMB segment, 16% of our revenue in our
MacMall/OnSale segment and 10% of our revenue in our Public Sector segment.
7
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Our SMB segment consists of sales made primarily to small and medium sized businesses, generally with less than 1,000 employees. The SMB segment
utilizes an outbound phone based sales force and, where applicable, a field-based sales force, together with an online extranet customized for individual
customers that enables them to manage their IT procurement process. In addition, the SMB segment markets to small businesses through its Small Business
Network utilizing its own social network site at www.pcmallsbn.com.
Our MME segment consists of sales made primarily to mid-market and enterprise-sized businesses, generally with more than 1,000 employees, under the
SARCOM, NSPI and Abreon brands. The MME segment sells complex products, services and solutions, utilizing a field relationship-based selling model, an
outbound phone based sales force, a field service organization and an online extranet.
Our Public Sector segment consists of sales made primarily to federal, state and local governments, as well as educational institutions. The Public Sector
segment utilizes an outbound phone and field relationship-based selling model, as well as contract and bid business development teams and an online
extranet.
Our MacMall/OnSale segment consists of sales made under our MacMall brand name via telephone, the Internet and four retail stores to consumers, small
businesses and creative professionals, and sales made under our OnSale and eCost brand names via the Internet and inbound phone-based sales forces. The
OnSale business has utilized traditional internet marketing as well as our recently developed “daily deals” business model.
2. Summary of New Accounting Standard
In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-12, “Comprehensive Income” (ASU 2011-12), which amended existing guidance by allowing only two options
for presenting the components of net income and other comprehensive income: (1) in a single continuous financial statement, statement of comprehensive
income or (2) in two separate but consecutive financial statements, consisting of an income statement followed by a separate statement of other
comprehensive income. ASU 2011-12 requires retrospective application, and it is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning
after December 15, 2011, with early adoption permitted. We adopted the two separate but consecutive financial statements presentation effective in our
quarterly period ended March 31, 2012. The adoption of this new standard did not have any effect on our consolidated financial position or results of
operations.
3. Property and Equipment
El Segundo Building
In March 2011, we completed the purchase of the real property comprising approximately 82,000 square feet of office space located at 1940 East
Mariposa Avenue, El Segundo, California, which became our new corporate headquarters. We moved into this building from our current headquarters located
in Torrance, California in November 2011. The total purchase price was $9.6 million. Based on the proportionate appraised values, we allocated $7.4 million
of the purchase price to land and $2.2 million to building. In June 2011, we entered into a credit agreement to finance the purchase and improvement of this
real property. The credit agreement provides a commitment for a loan up to $10.9 million of which we drew down a total of $10.1 million through June 30,
2012. At June 30, 2012, approximately $9.9 million was outstanding under this credit agreement. See Note 6 below for more information.
Capital Leases
In February, March and June 2012, we entered into capital lease agreements with a bank totaling approximately $4.7 million related to various furniture
and equipment at our El Segundo, California corporate headquarters office, our data center in Roswell, Georgia and our MME segment’s headquarter office in
Lewis Center, Ohio. Each of the capital leases have a five year term.
8
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4. Acquisition
eCOST.com
On February 18, 2011, we acquired certain assets, including approximately $1 million of inventory, of eCOST.com, a subsidiary of PFSweb, Inc., for $2.3
million. Also, as part of this acquisition, we assumed certain liabilities related to a web-based promotional membership program available on eCOST.com’s
website and liabilities with respect to customer warranty claims, credits, returns and refunds related to transactions of eCOST.com’s business or through the
website from and after the acquisition date. eCOST.com is an online marketplace featuring an assortment of product categories, including but not limited to
computers, networking, electronics and entertainment, TVs, monitors and projectors, cameras and camcorders, memory and storage, apparel, and sports and
leisure items. The website also features a proprietary and patented shopping format, Bargain Countdown®, which amongst other features, offers limited time,
limited quantity deals, and supports its premium online membership shopping club. eCOST.com commenced business in 1999 as a subsidiary of PC Mall. In
September 2004, eCOST.com completed an initial public offering of approximately 19.8% of its outstanding common stock. In April 2005, we completed a
spin-off of eCOST.com by distributing all of our remaining ownership interest in eCOST.com to our stockholders. In February 2006, eCOST.com was
acquired by PFSweb in a stock for stock merger.
5. Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill
There was no change in goodwill during the quarter ended June 30, 2012. Goodwill totaled $25.5 million as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, all
of which related to our MME segment.
Intangible Assets
The following table sets forth the amounts recorded for intangible assets as of the periods presented (in thousands):
Weighted
Average
Estimated
Useful Lives
(years)

Patent, trademarks & URLs
Customer relationships
Non-compete agreements
Total intangible assets

Gross
Amount

4
6
4

$
$

At June 30, 2012
Accumulated
Amortization

5,805(1) $
10,600
1,070
17,475
$

882
7,319
878
9,079

Net
Amount

$
$

4,923
3,281
192
8,396

Gross
Amount

$
$

At December 31, 2011
Accumulated
Amortization

5,715(1) $
10,600
1,070
17,385
$

372 $
6,431
742
7,545 $

Net
Amount

5,343
4,169
328
9,840

(1) Included in the gross amounts for “Patent, trademarks & URLs” at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 are $2.9 million of trademarks with indefinite
useful lives acquired in the SARCOM acquisition that are not amortized.
Amortization expense for intangible assets was approximately $0.8 million and $0.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, and approximately $1.5 million and $1.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Estimated amortization
expense for intangible assets in each of the next five years and thereafter is as follows: $1.3 million in the remainder of 2012; $1.9 million in 2013, $0.5
million in 2014, $0.5 million in 2015, $0.3 million in 2016 and $0.9 million thereafter.
6. Line of Credit and Notes Payable
We maintain an asset-based revolving credit facility of up to $160 million from a lending unit of a large commercial bank. The credit facility provides for,
among other things, (i) a credit limit of $160 million, which may be increased in increments of $5 million up to a total credit limit of $180 million, provided
that any increase of the total credit limit in excess of $160 million is subject to, among other things, an acceptance and commitment by the lenders to such
excess amount and a line increase fee not to exceed 0.65% of the increased amount; (ii) LIBOR interest rate options that we can enter into with no limit on
the maximum outstanding principal balance which may be subject to a LIBOR interest rate option; and (iii) a maturity date of March 31, 2015. The credit
facility, which functions as a working capital line of credit with a borrowing base of inventory and accounts receivable, including certain credit card
receivables, also includes a monthly unused line fee of 0.25% per year on the amount, if any, by which the Maximum Credit, as defined in the agreement,
then in effect, exceeds the average daily principal balance of the outstanding borrowings during the immediately preceding month. There can be no
assurance that the lenders, if we elected to increase the credit limit, will commit to the remaining excess $20 million of credit beyond the $160 million in any
future period. As a result, we may not be able to access the credit facility beyond its current limit of $160 million.
9
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The credit facility is collateralized by substantially all of our assets. In addition to the security interest required by the credit facility, certain of our
vendors have security interests in some of our assets related to their products. The credit facility has as its single financial covenant a minimum fixed charge
coverage ratio (FCCR) requirement in the event an FCCR triggering event has occurred. An FCCR triggering event is comprised of maintaining certain
specified daily and average excess availability thresholds. In the event the FCCR covenant applies, the fixed charge coverage ratio is 1.0 to 1.0 for each
twelve-month period. At June 30, 2012, we were in compliance with our financial covenant.
Loan availability under the line of credit fluctuates daily and is affected by many factors, including eligible assets on-hand, opportunistic purchases of
inventory and availability and utilization of early-pay discounts. At June 30, 2012, we had $71.8 million of net working capital advances outstanding under
the line of credit. At June 30, 2012, the maximum credit line was $160 million and we had $62.9 million available to borrow for working capital advances
under the line of credit.
In connection with and as part of the amended credit facility, we entered into an amended term note on December 14, 2010 with a principal balance of
$2.87 million, payable in equal monthly principal installments beginning on January 1, 2011, plus interest at the prime rate with a LIBOR option. The
amended term note matures in December 2017 or in the event of a default, termination or non-renewal of our credit facility, is payable in its entirety upon
demand by our lender. At June 30, 2012, we had $2.26 million outstanding under the amended term note. The remaining balance of our term note matures as
follows: $205,000 in the remainder of 2012 and $410,000 annually in each of the years 2013 through 2017.
At June 30, 2012, our effective weighted average annual interest rate on outstanding amounts under the credit facility and term note was 2.38%.
At June 30, 2012, $0.1 million relating to the financing of our purchase of Microsoft AX (Axapta), which is a part of our ERP upgrade, was included in our
“Notes payable — current” on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
In June 2011, we entered into a credit agreement to finance the acquisition and improvement of the real property we purchased in March 2011 in El
Segundo, California. The credit agreement provides for a lending commitment for a loan up to $10.9 million with a five year term and a 25 year straight-line
principal repayment amortization period with a balloon payment at maturity. Interest is variable, indexed to Prime plus a spread of 0.375% or LIBOR plus a
spread of 2.375% at our option, payable monthly. At June 30, 2012, we had $9.9 million outstanding under this credit agreement. The loan is secured by the
real property and contains financial covenants substantially similar to those of our existing asset-based credit facility.
The carrying amounts of our line of credit borrowings and notes payable approximate their fair value based upon the current rates offered to us for
obligations of similar terms and remaining maturities.
7. Income Taxes
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes
ASC 740 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions by prescribing the recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before being
recognized in the financial statements. It also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods,
disclosure, and transition. We had no unrecognized tax benefits and no accrued interest or penalties recognized as of the date of our adoption of ASC 740.
During the three months ended June 30, 2012, there were no changes in our unrecognized tax benefits, and we had no accrued interest or penalties as of June
30, 2012.
We are subject to U.S. and foreign income tax examinations for years subsequent to 2007, and state income tax examinations for years following 2006. In
addition, certain federal and state net operating loss carryforwards generated after 2003 and 1997, respectively, and used in a subsequent year, may still be
adjusted by a taxing authority upon examination.
8. Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) excludes dilution and is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the reported periods. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur under the treasury stock method if stock options and
other commitments to issue common stock were exercised, except in loss periods where the effect would be antidilutive. As such, potential common shares of
approximately 1,810,000 and 520,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, and approximately 1,799,000 and 521,000 for the six months
ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 have been excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS because the effect of their inclusion would be antidilutive.
10
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The reconciliation of the amounts used in the basic and diluted EPS computation was as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):
Net
Income

Three Months Ended June 30, 2012:
Basic EPS
Net income
Effect of dilutive securities
Dilutive effect of stock options
Diluted EPS
Adjusted net income

1,431

12,032

$

0.12

—

134

$

1,431

12,166

$

0.12

$

1,036

12,405

$

0.08

—

345

$

1,036

12,750

$

0.08

$

961

12,016

$

0.08

—

205

$

961

12,221

$

0.08

$

1,763

12,318

$

0.14

—

361

1,763

12,679

$

0.14

$

Three Months Ended June 30, 2011:
Basic EPS
Net income
Effect of dilutive securities
Dilutive effect of stock options
Diluted EPS
Adjusted net income
Six Months Ended June 30, 2012:
Basic EPS
Net income
Effect of dilutive securities
Dilutive effect of stock options
Diluted EPS
Adjusted net income
Six Months Ended June 30, 2011:
Basic EPS
Net income
Effect of dilutive securities
Dilutive effect of stock options
Diluted EPS
Adjusted net income

Per Share
Amounts

Shares

$

9. Segment Information
Summarized segment information for our continuing operations for the periods presented is as follows (in thousands):
SMB

Three Months Ended June 30, 2012
Net sales
Gross profit (loss)
Depreciation and amortization
expense(1)
Operating profit (loss)
Three Months Ended June 30, 2011
Net sales
Gross profit
Depreciation and amortization
expense(1)
Operating profit (loss)
Six Months Ended June 30, 2012
Net sales
Gross profit
Depreciation and amortization
expense(1)
Operating profit (loss)
Six Months Ended June 30, 2011
Net sales
Gross profit (loss)
Depreciation and amortization
expense(1)
Operating profit (loss)

$

115,605
16,814

$

1
9,592
$

131,270
16,837

233,160
33,578

$

270,008
33,755
4
18,189

$

128,624
19,859

$

286,381
41,662

$

239,133
37,845
1,763
12,856

$

$

41,404
3,356

73,876
7,457
62
(204)

$

73,081
6,553
96
(303)

56,324
6,289

Corporate &
Other

$

281
753
61,071
6,305

44
(344)

2,360
14,434
$

41,646
3,681

MacMall/
OnSale

28
(240)

888
7,697

3
18,940
$

149,048
21,806
1,203
8,163

1
9,005
$

Public
Sector

MME

111,553
12,563

$

360
599

(459) $
29
1,285
(13,592)

$

532
1,073
116,346
12,117

(30) $
(84)
1,639
(14,843)

236
(185)
$

Consolidated

(31) $
18
3,345
(30,689)

$

(720) $
(415)
2,396
(26,845)

362,593
48,506
3,152
3,425
361,910
46,386
2,454
2,581
704,939
95,278
6,302
3,554
697,848
89,855
4,619
4,496

(1) Primary fixed assets relating to network and servers are managed by the Corporate headquarters. As such, depreciation expense relating to such assets is
included as part of Corporate & Other.
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As of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, we had total consolidated assets of $379.3 million and $393.3 million. Our management does not have
available to them and does not use total assets measured at the segment level in allocating resources. Therefore, such information relating to segment assets is
not provided herein.
10. Commitments and Contingencies
Total rent expense under our operating leases, net of sublease income, was $1.3 million and $1.6 million in each of the three month periods ended
June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011 and $2.7 million and $3.2 million in each of the six month periods ended June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011. Some of our
leases contain renewal options and escalation clauses, and require us to pay taxes, insurance and maintenance costs.
Legal Proceedings
We are not currently a party to any material legal proceedings, other than ordinary routine litigation incidental to the business. From time to time, we
receive claims of and become subject to consumer protection, employment, intellectual property and other litigation related to the conduct of our business.
Any such litigation could be costly and time consuming and could divert our management and key personnel from our business operations. In connection
with any such litigation, we may be subject to significant damages or equitable remedies relating to the operation of our business. Any such litigation may
materially harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.
**
12

Table of Contents
ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
You should read the following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations together with the consolidated
financial statements and related notes thereto included elsewhere in this report. This discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and
uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including
those described under “Risk Factors” in Item 1A and elsewhere in this report.
BUSINESS OVERVIEW
PC Mall, Inc. is a leading value added direct marketer of technology products, services and solutions to businesses, government and educational
institutions and individual consumers. We go to market through our dedicated sales force of over 700 account executives. We also offer our products,
services and solutions through our field service teams, various direct marketing techniques and a limited number of retail stores. Since our founding in 1987,
we have served our customers in part by offering them multi-branded hardware solutions from leading brands including HP, Apple, Cisco, Microsoft and
Lenovo. Through us, these and other manufacturers are able to reach multiple customer segments including consumers, small and medium sized businesses,
large enterprise businesses, as well as state, local and federal governments and educational institutions. We add additional value to our manufacturer partners
by being able to sell, deliver and incorporate their products and services into comprehensive solutions with a high degree of customization. Our model also
facilitates an efficient supply chain and support mechanism for manufacturers by using a combination of direct marketing, centralized selling and support,
and centralized product fulfillment.
In conjunction with our eCost.com acquisition, which is discussed in detail below, beginning with the first quarter of 2011, our management considered
the OnSale and eCOST businesses together as a separate segment and reported their results accordingly. As such, in 2011, existing sales under the OnSale
brand were no longer reported under the MacMall segment and we had five operating segments: SMB, MME, Public Sector, MacMall and OnSale.
In the first quarter of 2012, we determined that certain product sales in a daily deal format marketed under our OnSale segment’s daily deal business can
do considerably better than in a traditional ecommerce catalog format. As this “daily deal” market and its related customer buying behaviors have continued
to evolve, the “daily deals” business model is rapidly expanding to include sales of IT products. In response to these developments, we determined that our
strategic objectives can be best achieved by incorporating the best practices, technologies and methodologies we have developed in our stand alone “daily
deals” business into our traditional eCommerce platform and no longer operating a stand alone “daily deals” business. As a result, and in order to take
advantage of this opportunity, we have determined that we will no longer operate a stand-alone “daily deals” business under OnSale. Instead, we have taken
the best practices and technology we have developed in the OnSale daily deals business and incorporated them into our overall eCommerce offering.
Beginning in the first quarter of 2012, we restored operating and reporting of the OnSale and MacMall businesses within a single segment. As a result, we
now have four operating segments: SMB, MME, Public Sector and MacMall/OnSale. We include corporate related expenses such as legal, accounting,
information technology, product management, certain support services and other administrative costs that are not otherwise allocated to our reportable
operating segments in Corporate and Other. All historical segment financial information provided herein has been revised to reflect these new reportable
operating segments.
During the three months ended June 30, 2012, we generated approximately 41% of our revenue in our MME segment, 32% of our revenue in our SMB
segment, 16% of our revenue in our MacMall/OnSale segment and 11% of our revenue in our Public Sector segment. During the six months ended June 30,
2012, we generated approximately 41% of our revenue in our MME segment, 33% of our revenue in our SMB segment, 16% of our revenue in our
MacMall/OnSale segment and 10% of our revenue in our Public Sector segment.
Our SMB segment consists of sales made primarily to small and medium sized businesses, generally with less than 1,000 employees. The SMB segment
utilizes an outbound phone based sales force and, where applicable, a field-based sales force, together with an online extranet customized for individual
customers that enables them to manage their IT procurement process. In addition, the SMB segment markets to small businesses through its Small Business
Network utilizing its own social network site at www.pcmallsbn.com.
Our MME segment consists of sales made primarily to mid-market and enterprise-sized businesses, generally with more than 1,000 employees, under the
SARCOM, NSPI and Abreon brands. The MME segment sells complex products, services and solutions, utilizing a field relationship-based selling model, an
outbound phone based sales force, a field service organization and an online extranet.
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Our Public Sector segment consists of sales made primarily to federal, state and local governments, as well as educational institutions. The Public Sector
segment utilizes an outbound phone and field relationship-based selling model, as well as contract and bid business development teams and an online
extranet.
Our MacMall/OnSale segment consists of sales made under our MacMall brand name via telephone, the Internet and four retail stores to consumers, small
businesses and creative professionals, and sales made under our OnSale and eCost brand names via the Internet and inbound phone-based sales forces. The
OnSale business has utilized traditional internet marketing as well as our recently developed “daily deals” business model.
We experience variability in our net sales and operating results on a quarterly basis as a result of many factors. We experience some seasonal trends in our
sales of technology products, services and solutions to businesses, government and educational institutions and individual customers. For example, the
timing of capital budget authorizations for our customers in the small and medium sized business sector and the mid-market and enterprise sector can affect
when these companies can procure IT products and services. The fiscal year-ends of Public Sector customers vary for those in the federal government space
and those in the state and local government and educational institution (“SLED”) sector. We generally see an increase in our second quarter sales related to
customers in the SLED sector and in our third quarter sales related to customers in the federal government space as these customers close out their budgets for
their fiscal year. Also, consumer holiday spending contributes to variances in our quarterly results. As such, the results of interim periods are not necessarily
indicative of the results that may be expected for any other interim period or for the full year.
There has been substantial ongoing uncertainty in the global economic environment and recent disruptions in the capital and credit markets. General
economic conditions have an effect on our business and results of operations across all of our segments. If economic growth in the U.S. and other countries’
economies slows or declines, government, consumer and business spending rates could be significantly reduced. These developments could also increase the
risk of uncollectible accounts receivable from our customers. Continued and future changes and uncertainties in the economic climate in the U.S. and
elsewhere could have a similar negative impact on the rate of information technology spending of our current and potential customers, which would likely
have a negative impact on our business and results of operations, and could significantly hinder our growth. These factors could result in reductions in sales
of our products, longer sales cycles, slower adoption of new technologies and increased price competition, which could materially and adversely affect our
business, results of operations and financial condition. In response to these uncertainties, we have continued to focus our efforts on cost reduction initiatives,
competitive pricing strategies and driving higher margin service and solution sales, while continuing to make selective investments in our sales force
personnel, service and solutions capabilities and IT infrastructure and tools in an effort to position us for enhanced productivity and future growth.
Our planned operating expenditures each quarter are based in large part on sales forecasts for the quarter. If our sales do not meet expectations in any
given quarter, our operating results for the quarter may be materially adversely affected. Our narrow gross margins may magnify the impact of these factors on
our operating results. Management regularly reviews our operating performance using a variety of financial and non-financial metrics including sales,
shipments, gross margin, vendor consideration, advertising expense, personnel costs, account executive productivity, accounts receivable aging, inventory
turnover, liquidity and cash resources. Our management monitors the various metrics against goals and budgets, and makes necessary adjustments intended
to enhance our performance.
A substantial portion of our business is dependent on sales of Apple, HP, and products purchased from other vendors including Adobe, APC,
Cisco, Dell, IBM, Ingram Micro, Lenovo, Microsoft, Tech Data and VMware. Products manufactured by Apple represented approximately 17% and 21% of
our net sales in the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, and 17% and 22% of our net sales in the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011. Products
manufactured by HP represented 20% and 22% of our net sales in the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, and 21% and 21% of our net sales in the
six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.
One element of our business strategy involves expansion through the acquisition of businesses, assets, personnel or technologies that allow us to
complement our existing operations, expand our market coverage, or add new business capabilities. While we believe that the fragmented nature of the
technology reseller industry and industry consolidation trends may continue to present acquisition opportunities for us, these continued trends may make
acquisitions more competitive.
We evaluate acquisition opportunities based on our assessment of several factors, including the perceived value of the opportunity, our available
financing sources, and potential synergies of the acquisition target with our business. Our ability to complete acquisitions in the future will depend on our
ability to fund such acquisitions with our internally available cash, cash generated from operations, amounts available under our existing credit facilities,
additional borrowings or from the issuance of additional securities. As more fully discussed under “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below, certain trends in
our operating results may impact our available cash resources and availability under our credit facilities, which in turn may impact our ability to pursue our
acquisition strategy.
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STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENTS
Rebranding Strategy and Cost Reduction Initiatives
Over the past several years, our company has grown into a multi-billion dollar enterprise in part through our acquisition and internal cultivation of many
different brands. We have historically differentiated those brands primarily based on the identity of the customers. After careful examination of the markets
we serve and the trends taking shape in the marketplace, we have determined that going forward, our commercial customers can benefit from a more unified
and streamlined brand strategy. In 2012, we began the process of unifying our commercial brands. We believe this unification will lead to an improved
customer experience, operational synergies and benefits to all of our stakeholders, providing a brand that better represents the value-added solutions provider
we are today.
An important part of these initiatives is a focused reduction of our overhead expenses. To that end, we took actions in the first half of 2012 that we expect
will result in $3.4 million of annualized cost savings. These and other related actions resulted in severance and restructuring related expenses of
approximately $1.4 million in the first half of 2012. We are evaluating additional actions that we plan to implement in the third and fourth quarters of 2012
that we expect will result in incremental annualized cost reductions of at least $2.5 million. We currently expect that we will incur additional severance and
restructuring related costs in connection with these actions.
ERP and Web Infrastructure Upgrades
We are currently upgrading many of our IT systems. We have purchased licenses for Microsoft Dynamics AX (Axapta) and other related tools, such as
workflow software, web development tools and other related items, to upgrade our ERP and eCommerce systems. We initiated the implementation and
upgrade of our eCommerce system in the second half of 2008 and have completed and launched a new generation of our public sites at macmall.com,
onsale.com and pcmall.com. We are currently working on the implementation of the ERP modules and the upgrade of the ERP systems, including additional
enhancements and features, and we expect to be complete with all major phases of the implementation of the ERP systems by the end of 2013. We believe the
implementation and upgrade should help us to gain further efficiencies across our organization. While it is difficult to estimate costs based on the complexity
of the systems design, customization and implementation, based on our estimates, which are subject to change, we currently expect to incur a cost of
approximately $16 million for the major phases of these IT system upgrades. To date, we have incurred approximately $12.6 million of such costs. In
addition to the above expenditures, we expect on an ongoing basis to make periodic upgrades to our IT systems.
Real Estate Transactions
On February 10, 2012, we announced that we signed a definitive agreement to sell the property we own in Southern California, where one of our retail
stores is currently located, for $17.5 million. While there are no guarantees that this transaction will close, in the event of closing we expect to realize a book
gain of approximately $15.9 million. Buyer is currently engaged in certain due diligence related to the property and we are currently uncertain of the timing
of the close of the transaction and the probability that the transaction will close. In connection with and in the event of this sale, we intend to explore
potential purchases or exchanges of real estate through Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. We expect to effectuate such
exchanges through one or more purchases of real property to be used in connection with our business and operations. We expect that any exchanges or
purchases we make would benefit us through direct ownership of facilities that are strategic to our operations, reductions in our lease obligations, or other
ancillary benefits. To that end, On March 16, 2012 we announced that one of our wholly-owned subsidiaries, M2 Marketplace, Inc., entered into an
agreement with Sarcom Properties, Inc., an unaffiliated third party, to buy certain real estate for $5.9 million. The parcel is located in Lewis Center, Ohio and
includes approximately 12.4 acres of land together with a building of approximately 144,000 square feet. One of our other subsidiaries is currently the tenant
of the building. We expect that the completion of this purchase will occur only in the event that the sale of our retail location in Southern California is
consummated.
On March 11, 2011, we completed the purchase of real property comprising approximately 184,000 square feet of land, which includes approximately
84,000 square feet of office space located at 1940 East Mariposa Avenue, El Segundo, California, which became our new corporate headquarters effective
November 14, 2011. We purchased and have improved this building, located strategically adjacent to the Los Angeles International Airport (LAX), because
we want it to be a compelling destination for customers who want to experience new and cutting edge IT solutions in person. The new headquarters was
designed to drive higher productivity and efficiency for our employees and to provide a state-of-the-art demo center for our customers and vendor partners, as
well as increase capacity to support our growth well into the future. In conjunction with the move, we relocated and substantially upgraded our primary data
center from Torrance, California to our own hosting facility in Atlanta, Georgia, which incorporates state of the art monitoring and disaster recovery
capabilities. As a result of this relocation certain of our subsidiaries now have geographically redundant web and information systems. We are in the process
of developing a formal disaster recovery plan for our critical systems.
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eCOST.com Acquisition
On February 18, 2011, we acquired certain assets, including approximately $1 million of inventory, of eCOST.com, a subsidiary of PFSweb, Inc., for $2.3
million. eCOST.com is an online marketplace featuring an assortment of product categories, including but not limited to computers, networking, electronics
and entertainment, TVs, monitors and projectors, cameras and camcorders, memory and storage, apparel, and sports and leisure items. The website also
features a proprietary and patented shopping format, Bargain Countdown®, which amongst other features, offers limited time, limited quantity deals, and
supports its premium online membership shopping club. eCOST.com commenced business in 1999 as a subsidiary of PC Mall. In September 2004,
eCOST.com completed an initial public offering of approximately 19.8% of its outstanding common stock. In April 2005, we completed a spin-off of
eCOST.com by distributing all of our remaining ownership interest in eCOST.com to our stockholders. In February 2006, eCOST.com was acquired by
PFSweb in a stock for stock merger.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
The preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, net sales and expenses, as well as the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Management bases its estimates, judgments
and assumptions on historical experience and on various other factors that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis for making judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Due to the inherent uncertainty
involved in making estimates, actual results reported for future periods may be affected by changes in those estimates, and revisions to estimates are included
in our results for the period in which the actual amounts become known.
Management considers an accounting estimate to be critical if:
·
·

it requires assumptions to be made that were uncertain at the time the estimate was made; and
changes in the estimate or different estimates that could have been selected could have a material impact on our consolidated results of operations or
financial position.

Management has discussed the development and selection of these critical accounting policies and estimates with the audit committee of our board of
directors. We believe the critical accounting policies described below affect the more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements. For a summary of our significant accounting policies, including those discussed below, see Note 2 of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, Part II, of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.
Revenue Recognition. We adhere to the revised guidelines and principles of sales recognition described in ASC 605. Under ASC 605, product sales are
recognized when the title and risk of loss are passed to the customer, there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement for sale, delivery has occurred and/or
services have been rendered, the sales price is fixed and determinable and collectability is reasonably assured. Under these guidelines, the majority of our
sales, including revenue from product sales and gross outbound shipping and handling charges, are recognized upon receipt of the product by the customer.
In accordance with our revenue recognition policy, we perform an analysis to estimate the number of days products we have shipped are in transit to our
customers using data from our third party carriers and other factors. We record an adjustment to reverse the impact of sale transactions based on the estimated
value of products that have shipped, but have not yet been received by our customers, and we recognize such amounts in the subsequent period when
delivery has occurred. Changes in delivery patterns or unforeseen shipping delays beyond our control could have a material impact on our revenue
recognition for the current period.
For all product sales shipped directly from suppliers to customers, we take title to the products sold upon shipment, bear credit risk, and bear inventory
risk for returned products that are not successfully returned to suppliers; therefore, these revenues are recognized at gross sales amounts.
Certain software assurance or subscription products and extended warranties that we sell (for which we are not the primary obligor) are recognized on a net
basis in accordance with ASC 605. Accordingly, such revenues are recognized in net sales either at the time of sale or over the contract period, based on the
nature of the contract, at the net amount retained by us, with no cost of goods sold.
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When a customer order contains multiple deliverables such as hardware, software and services which are delivered at varying times, we determine whether
the delivered items can be considered separate units of accounting as prescribed under ASC 605. For arrangements with multiple units of accounting,
arrangement consideration is allocated among the units of accounting, where separable, based on their relative selling price. Relative selling price is
determined based on vendor-specific objective evidence, if it exists. Otherwise, third-party evidence of selling price is used, when it is available, and in
circumstances when neither vendor-specific objective evidence nor third-party evidence of selling price is available, management’s best estimate of selling
price is used.
Sales are reported net of estimated returns and allowances, discounts, mail-in rebate redemptions and credit card chargebacks. If the actual sales returns,
allowances, discounts, mail-in rebate redemptions or credit card chargebacks are greater than estimated by management, additional expense may be incurred.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Receivable. We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts receivable based upon estimates of future collection. We
extend credit to our customers based upon an evaluation of each customer’s financial condition and credit history, and generally do not require collateral. We
regularly evaluate our customers’ financial condition and credit history in determining the adequacy of our allowance for doubtful accounts. We also
maintain an allowance for uncollectible vendor receivables, which arise from vendor rebate programs, price protections and other promotions. We determine
the sufficiency of the vendor receivable allowance based upon various factors, including payment history. Amounts received from vendors may vary from
amounts recorded because of potential non-compliance with certain elements of vendor programs. If the estimated allowance for uncollectible accounts or
vendor receivables subsequently proves to be insufficient, additional allowance may be required.
Reserve for Inventory Obsolescence. We maintain an allowance for the valuation of our inventory by estimating obsolete or unmarketable inventory
based on the difference between inventory cost and market value, which is determined by general market conditions, nature, age and type of each product
and assumptions about future demand. We regularly evaluate the adequacy of our inventory reserve. If our inventory reserve subsequently proves to be
insufficient, additional allowance may be required.
Vendor Consideration. We receive vendor consideration from our vendors in the form of cooperative marketing allowances, volume incentive rebates
and other programs to support our marketing of their products. Most of our vendor consideration is accrued, when performance required for recognition is
completed, as an offset to cost of sales in accordance with ASC 605-50 since such funds are not a reimbursement of specific, incremental, identifiable costs
incurred by us in selling the vendors’ products. At the end of any given period, unbilled receivables related to our vendor consideration are included in our
“Accounts receivable, net of allowances.”
Stock-Based Compensation. We account for stock-based compensation in accordance with ASC 718, using the modified prospective application
transition method. ASC 718 addresses the accounting for share-based payment transactions in which an enterprise receives employee services in exchange for
either equity instruments of the enterprise or liabilities that are based on the fair value of the enterprise’s equity instruments or that may be settled by the
issuance of such equity instruments. ASC 718 generally requires that such transactions be accounted for using a fair value based method and recognized as
expenses in our Consolidated Statements of Operations.
Pursuant to ASC 718, we estimate the grant date fair value of each stock option grant awarded pursuant to ASC 718 using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model and management assumptions made regarding various factors, including expected volatility of our common stock, expected life of options
granted and estimated forfeiture rates, which require extensive use of accounting judgment and financial estimates. In estimating our assumption regarding
expected term for options we granted during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, we computed the expected term based upon an analysis of
historical exercises of stock options by our employees. We compute our expected volatility using historical prices of our common stock for a period equal to
the expected term of the options. The risk free interest rate is determined using the implied yield on U.S. Treasury issues with a remaining term within the
contractual life of the award. We estimate an annual forfeiture rate based on our historical forfeiture data, which rate will be revised, if necessary, in future
periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Any material change in the estimates used in calculating the stock-based compensation expense could
result in a material impact on our results of operations.
Goodwill and Intangible Assets. Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are carried at historical cost, subject to write-down, as needed, based
upon an impairment analysis that we perform annually, or sooner if an event occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than not result in an
impairment loss. We perform our annual impairment test for goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets as of December 31 of each year. Under ASC 350,
goodwill impairment is deemed to exist if the net book value of a reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value. Events that may create an impairment
include, but are not limited to, significant and sustained decline in our stock price or market capitalization, significant underperformance of operating units
and significant changes in market conditions. Changes in estimates of future cash flows or changes in market values could result in a write-down of our
goodwill in a future period. If an impairment loss results from any impairment analysis as described above, such loss will be recorded as a pre-tax charge to
our operating income.
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Goodwill impairment testing is a two-step process. Step one involves comparing the fair value of our reporting units to their carrying amount. If the fair
value of the reporting unit is greater than its carrying amount, there is no impairment and no further testing is required. If the reporting unit’s carrying amount
is greater than the fair value, the second step must be completed to measure the amount of impairment, if any. Step two calculates the implied fair value of
goodwill by deducting the fair value of all tangible and intangible assets, excluding goodwill, of the reporting unit from the fair value of the reporting unit as
determined in step one. The implied fair value of goodwill determined in this step is compared to the carrying value of goodwill. If the implied fair value of
goodwill is less than the carrying value of goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized equal to the difference.
Fair value is determined by using a weighted combination of a market-based approach and an income approach, as this combination is deemed to be the
most indicative of fair value in an orderly transaction between market participants. Under the market-based approach, we utilize information regarding our
company and publicly available comparable company and industry information to determine cash flow multiples and revenue multiples that are used to
value our reporting units. Under the income approach, we determine fair value based on estimated future cash flows of each reporting unit, discounted by an
estimated weighted-average cost of capital, which reflects the overall level of inherent risk of a reporting unit and the rate of return an outside investor would
expect to earn.
In addition, fair values of our trademarks are determined using the relief from royalty method under the income approach to value. This method applies a
market based royalty rate to projected revenues that are associated with the trademarks. Applying the royalty rate to projected revenues result in an indication
of the pre-tax royalty savings associated with ownership of the trademarks. Projected after-tax royalty savings are discounted to present value at the reporting
unit’s weighted average cost of capital, and a tax amortization benefit (calculated based on a 15 year life for tax purposes) is added.
Given continuing economic uncertainties and related risks to our business, there can be no assurance that our estimates and assumptions made for
purposes of our goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets impairment testing as of December 31, 2011 will prove to be accurate predictions of the
future. We may be required to record additional goodwill impairment charges in future periods, whether in connection with our next annual impairment
testing as of December 31, 2012 or prior to that, if any change constitutes a triggering event outside of the quarter from when the annual goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets impairment test is performed. It is not possible at this time to determine if any such future impairment charge would result
or, if it does, whether such charge would be material.
We amortize other intangible assets with definite lives generally on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Consolidated Statements of Operations Data
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, our Consolidated Statements of Operations (in thousands, unaudited) and information derived
from our Consolidated Statements of Operations expressed as a percentage of net sales. There can be no assurance that trends in our net sales, gross profit or
operating results will continue in the future.
Three Months Ended
June 30,
2012
2011

Net sales
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Revaluation of earnout liability
Operating profit
Interest expense, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net income

$

362,593
314,087
48,506
45,256
(175)
3,425
909
2,516
1,085
1,431

$

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Common Share
Basic
Diluted

$

0.12
0.12

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

$

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2012

361,910
315,524
46,386
44,605
(800)
2,581
835
1,746
710
1,036

$

$

$

0.08
0.08

12,405
12,750

Three Months Ended
June 30,
2012
2011

100.0%
86.6
13.4
12.5
(0.1)
1.0
0.3
0.7
0.3
0.4 %

2011

704,939
609,661
95,278
91,899
(175)
3,554
1,840
1,714
753
961

$

0.08
0.08

12,032
12,166

Net sales
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Revaluation of earnout liability
Operating profit
Interest expense, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net income

$

$

$

697,848
607,993
89,855
86,159
(800)
4,496
1,558
2,938
1,175
1,763

$

12,016
12,221

0.14
0.14
12,318
12,679

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2012

100.0%
87.2
12.8
12.3
(0.2)
0.7
0.2
0.5
0.2
0.3 %

2011

100.0%
86.5
13.5
13.0
0.0
0.5
0.3
0.2
0.1
0.1 %

100.0%
87.1
12.9
12.3
(0.1)
0.7
0.2
0.5
0.2
0.3 %

Three Months Ended June 30, 2012 Compared to the Three Months Ended June 30, 2011
Net Sales. The following table presents our net sales, by segment, for the periods presented (dollars in thousands):
Three Months Ended
June 30,
2012
2011

SMB
MME
Public Sector
MacMall/OnSale
Corporate and Other
Consolidated net sales

$

$

115,605
149,048
41,646
56,324
(30)
362,593

(1) Not meaningful.
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$

$

131,270
128,624
41,404
61,071
(459)
361,910

Change
$

$

$

%

(15,665)
20,424
242
(4,747)
429
683

(12)%
16
1
(8)
NMF(1)
0%
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Our consolidated net sales for the second quarter of 2012 were $362.6 million, a $0.7 million increase from consolidated net sales of $361.9 million in the
second quarter of 2011.
Our SMB segment net sales decreased by $15.7 million, or 12%, in the second quarter of 2012 to $115.6 million from $131.3 million in the second
quarter of 2011. This decrease was due to a $17.2 million decline in sales to promotional companies as a result of a program change in the fourth quarter of
2011 by a large vendor primarily impacting our SMB and MacMall/OnSale segments as we had disclosed in our fourth quarter 2011 results. The decrease was
partially offset by a $1.6 million increase in sales to customers outside that program. As we indicated previously, the effects of this program change are
expected to continue to have an impact on year over year comparisons throughout 2012. In 2011, sales under this program were approximately $23.2 million,
$20.0 million, $12.7 million and $8.8 million in the first quarter, second quarter, third quarter and fourth quarter respectively.
Our MME segment net sales increased by $20.4 million, or 16%, in the second quarter of 2012 to $149.0 million from $128.6 million in the second
quarter of 2011. This increase was primarily due to a 14% increase in net sales of products in the second quarter of 2012 compared to the second quarter of
2011, as well as a 26% increase in sales of services. In the second quarter of 2012, sales of services as a percentage of net sales increased to 20% of MME
segment net sales from 18% of net sales for the same period in 2011.
Our Public Sector segment net sales increased by $0.2 million, or 1%, in the second quarter of 2012 to $41.6 million compared to $41.4 million in the
second quarter of 2011. This increase in Public Sector net sales was due to a 19% increase in sales to state and local government and educational institutions
(SLED) resulting primarily from increased account executive headcount focused on SLED business and increased account executive productivity, partially
offset by a 26% decrease in our federal government business.
Our MacMall/OnSale segment net sales were $56.3 million in the second quarter of 2012 compared to $61.1 million in the second quarter of 2011, a
decrease of $4.7 million, or 8%. The decrease in MacMall/OnSale net sales was primarily due to what we believe was a combination of soft demand in
anticipation of new product releases as well as constrained inventory once those products were announced.
Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin. The following table presents our gross profit and gross profit margin, by segment, for the periods presented (dollars
in thousands):
Three Months Ended
June 30,
2012
Gross Profit

SMB
MME
Public Sector
MacMall/OnSale
Corporate and Other
Consolidated gross profit and gross
profit margin

$

16,814
21,806
3,681
6,289
(84)

$

48,506

2011
Gross Profit
Margin

Gross Profit

14.5% $
14.6
8.8
11.2
NMF(1)

16,837
19,859
3,356
6,305
29

$

46,386

13.4%

Gross Profit
Margin

Change
$

12.8% $
15.4
8.1
10.3
NMF(1)
12.8%

$

Margin

(23)
1,947
325
(16)
(113)

1.7%
(0.8)
0.7
0.9
NMF(1)

2,120

0.6%

(1) Not meaningful
Consolidated gross profit for the second quarter of 2012 was $48.5 million compared to $46.4 million in the second quarter of 2011, an increase of $2.1
million, or 5%. Consolidated gross profit margin was 13.4% in the second quarter of 2012 compared to 12.8% in the second quarter of 2011.
Gross profit for our SMB segment remained flat at $16.8 million in the second quarter of 2012 and in the second quarter of 2011. SMB gross profit margin
increased to 14.5% in the second quarter of 2012 compared to 12.8% in the second quarter of 2011 primarily due to an increase in vendor consideration as a
percentage of net sales as well as a decrease in sales to promotional companies at lower margins.
Gross profit for our MME segment increased by $1.9 million, or 10%, to $21.8 million in the second quarter of 2012 compared to $19.9 million in the
second quarter of 2011. MME gross profit margin decreased to 14.6% in the second quarter of 2012 compared to 15.4% in the second quarter of 2011. The
increase in MME gross profit was due to the increased MME net sales discussed above, partially offset by a decrease in product margins. The decrease in
MME gross profit margin was primarily due to a 50 basis point decrease in vendor consideration as a percentage of net sales and a competitive pricing
environment for product sales.
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Gross profit for our Public Sector segment increased by $0.3 million, or 10%, to $3.7 million in the second quarter of 2012 compared to $3.4 million in
the second quarter of 2011. Public Sector gross profit margin increased by 70 basis points to 8.8% in the second quarter of 2012 compared to 8.1% in the
second quarter of 2011. The increase in Public Sector gross profit and gross profit margin was primarily due to an increase in selling margin and an increase in
vendor consideration.
Gross profit for our MacMall/OnSale segment remained flat at $6.3 million in the second quarter of 2012 and 2011. MacMall/OnSale gross profit margin
increased by 90 basis points to 11.2% in the second quarter of 2012 compared to 10.3% in the second quarter of 2011. The increase in MacMall/OnSale gross
profit margin was primarily due to an increase in selling margin as well as a 28 basis point increase in vendor consideration as a percentage of sales.
Operating Profit (Loss) and Operating Profit (Loss) Margin. The following table presents our operating profit and operating profit margin, by segment,
for the periods presented (dollars in thousands):
Three Months Ended
June 30,
2012
Operating
Profit (Loss)

SMB
MME
Public Sector
MacMall/OnSale
Corporate and Other
Consolidated operating profit
and operating profit margin

$

9,592
8,163
(240)
753
(14,843)

$

3,425

2011
Operating
Profit (Loss)
Margin(1)

Operating
Profit (Loss)

8.3% $
5.5
(0.6)
1.3
(4.1)(1)
0.9%

$

9,005
7,697
(344)
(185)
(13,592)
2,581

Operating
Profit (Loss)
Margin(1)

Change
$

6.9% $
6.0
(0.8)
(0.3)
(3.8)(1)
0.7%

$

Margin

587
466
104
938
(1,251)
844

1.4%
(0.5)
0.2
1.6
(0.3)(1)
0.2%

(1) Operating profit margin for Corporate and Other is computed based on consolidated net sales. Operating profit margin for each of the other segments is
computed based on the respective segment’s net sales.
Consolidated operating profit for the second quarter of 2012 was $3.4 million compared to $2.6 million in the second quarter of 2011, a $0.8 million
increase, or 33%. Consolidated operating profit margin for the second quarter of 2012 was 0.9% compared to 0.7% in the second quarter of 2011.
Our SMB segment operating profit increased by $0.6 million, or 7%, to $9.6 million in the second quarter of 2012 compared to $9.0 million in the second
quarter of 2011. This increase resulted primarily from small improvements in a number of components of selling, general and administrative expenses.
MME operating profit in the second quarter of 2012 increased by $0.5 million, or 6%, to $8.2 million compared to $7.7 million in the second quarter of
2011. The increase was primarily due to the increased MME gross profit discussed above, partially offset by a $0.6 million increase in personnel costs and a
$0.3 million increase in depreciation and amortization expenses primarily related to the acceleration of our SARCOM and NSPI trademark amortization in
connection with our rebranding strategy. The increase in personnel costs was primarily related to an increase in unutilized service labor and variable
compensation costs related to the growth in our business and a $0.2 million increase in employee severance costs. Second quarter 2012 operating profit also
included a $0.2 million benefit from a decrease in the estimated fair value of the contingent consideration liability related to our NSPI acquisition, compared
to a $0.8 million benefit recorded in the second quarter of 2011.
Our Public Sector segment operating loss decreased by $0.1 million, or 30% to $0.2 million in second quarter of 2012 compared to $0.3 million in the
second quarter of 2011. The decrease in Public Sector operating loss was primarily due to the increase in Public Sector gross profit discussed above, partially
offset by a $0.4 million increase in personnel costs.
MacMall/OnSale operating profit increased by $1.0 million to $0.8 million in the second quarter of 2012 compared to an operating loss of $0.2 million in
the second quarter 2011. This increase in MacMall/OnSale operating profit was primarily due to a decrease in third party support costs of $0.3 million which
were incurred in the prior year to transition our eCost acquisition, a decrease in personnel costs of $0.2 million, a decrease in legal costs of $0.2 million and a
decrease in credit card related costs of $0.2 million.
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Corporate and Other operating expenses includes corporate related expenses such as legal, accounting, information technology, product management and
certain professional and pre-sales support services and other administrative costs that are not otherwise included in our reportable operating segments.
Second quarter 2012 Corporate and Other operating expenses increased by $1.2 million, or 9%, to $14.8 million from $13.6 million in the second quarter of
2011. The increase in the second quarter of 2012 was primarily related to a $1.1 million increase in personnel costs primarily supporting continued
investments in IT and professional and pre-sales support services, and a $0.4 million increase in depreciation expense associated with the completed portions
of our on-going systems upgrades, partially offset by a $0.5 million decrease in litigation costs primarily related to defending in the prior year what we
believe was a meritless lawsuit which was settled in January 2012 without liability to the company.
Net Interest Expense. Total net interest expense for the second quarter of 2012 increased to $0.9 million compared to $0.8 million in the second quarter of
2011. The increase in interest expense of $0.1 million resulted primarily from the increase in our outstanding borrowings primarily related to the financing of
our new El Segundo headquarters office building, partially offset by a decrease in our average outstanding borrowing on our revolving loan as well as a
decrease in our average effective borrowing rate.
Income Tax Expense. We recorded an income tax expense of $1.1 million in the second quarter of 2012 compared to an income tax expense of $0.7
million in the second quarter of 2011. Our effective tax rate for the quarters ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 was approximately 43% and 41%.
Six Months Ended June 30, 2012 Compared to the Six Months Ended June 30, 2011
Net Sales. The following table presents our net sales, by segment, for the periods presented (dollars in thousands):
Six Months Ended
June 30,
2012

SMB
MME
Public Sector
MacMall/OnSale
Corporate and Other
Consolidated net sales

$

$

Change
2011

233,160
286,381
73,876
111,553
(31)
704,939

$

$

270,008
239,133
73,081
116,346
(720)
697,848

$

$

$

%

(36,848)
47,248
795
(4,793)
689
7,091

(14)%
20
1
(4)
NMF(1)
1%

(1) Not meaningful.
Our consolidated net sales for the six months ended June 30, 2012 were $704.9 million, an increase of $7.1 million, or 1%, from consolidated net sales of
$697.8 million in the six months ended June 30, 2011.
Our SMB segment net sales decreased by $36.8 million, or 14%, to $233.2 million in the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $270.0 million in the six
months ended June 30, 2011. This decrease was due to a $35.9 million decline in sales to promotional companies as a result of the program change
mentioned earlier and $1.0 million decrease in sales to customers outside that program.
Our MME segment net sales increased by $47.3 million, or 20%, to $286.4 million in the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $239.1 million in the six
months ended June 30, 2011. This increase was primarily due to a 24% increase in sales of services in the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to the
same period in 2011 while product revenues increased by 19% in the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to the same period in 2011. In the six
months ended June 30, 2012, sales of services as a percentage of net sales increased to 20% of sales from 19% of net sales in the six months ended June 30,
2011.
Our Public Sector segment net sales increased by $0.8 million, or 1%, to $73.9 million in the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to $73.1 million
in the six months ended June 30, 2011. This increase in Public Sector net sales was due to a 21% increase in sales to SLED customers resulting primarily from
increased account executive headcount focused on SLED business, partially offset by a 22% decrease in our federal government business.
Our MacMall/OnSale segment net sales decreased by $4.7 million, or 4%, to $111.6 million in the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to $116.3
million in the six months ended June 30, 2011. The decrease in MacMall/OnSale net sales was primarily due to a $4.0 million decrease in MacMall net sales
due to the vendor program change mentioned earlier. Sales under this program in 2012 were approximately $1.0 million and $3.2 million in each of the first
two quarters of 2012 and approximately $5.5 million and $2.7 million in each of the first two quarters of 2011. In addition, MacMall/OnSale net sales were
impacted by what we believe was a combination of soft demand in anticipation of new product releases as well as constrained inventory once those products
were announced during the second quarter of 2012.
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin. The following table presents our gross profit and gross profit margin, by segment, for the periods presented (dollars
in thousands):
Six Months Ended
June 30,
2012
Gross Profit

SMB
MME
Public Sector
MacMall/OnSale
Corporate and Other
Consolidated gross profit
and gross profit margin

2011
Gross Profit
Margin

$

33,578
41,662
7,457
12,563
18

$

95,278

14.4% $
14.5
10.1
11.3
NMF(1)
13.5%

Gross Profit
Margin

Gross Profit

33,755
37,845
6,553
12,117
(415)

$

89,855

Change
$

12.5% $
15.8
9.0
10.4
NMF(1)
12.9%

$

Margin

(177)
3,817
904
446
433

1.9%
(1.3)
1.1
0.9
NMF(1)

5,423

0.6%

(1) Not meaningful
Consolidated gross profit for the six months ended June 30, 2012 was $95.3 million compared to $89.9 million in the six months ended June 30, 2011, an
increase of $5.4 million, or 6%. Consolidated gross profit margin for the six months ended June 30, 2012 was 13.5% compared to 12.9% in the six months
ended June 30, 2011.
Gross profit for our SMB segment decreased by $0.2 million, to $33.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to $33.8 million in the
six months ended June 30, 201 resulting primarily from decreased SMB net sales discussed above but offset by an increase in gross profit for the core SMB
business. SMB gross profit margin increased by 190 basis points to 14.4% in the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to 12.5% in the six months ended
June 30, 2011 primarily due to an increase in vendor consideration as a percentage of net sales as well as a decrease in sales to promotional companies at
lower margins.
Gross profit for our MME segment increased by $3.9 million, or 10%, to $41.7 million in the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to $37.8 million
in the six months ended June 30, 2011, and gross profit margin for the six months ended June 30, 2012 was 14.5% compared to 15.8% in the six months
ended June 30, 2011. The increase in MME gross profit was primarily due to the increased MME net sales discussed above, partially offset by a decrease in
product margins. The decrease in MME gross profit margin was primarily due to a 53 basis point decrease in vendor consideration as a percentage of net sales
and a competitive pricing environment for product sales.
Gross profit for our Public Sector segment increased by $0.9 million, or 14%, to $7.5 million in the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to $6.6
million in the six months ended June 30, 2011. Public Sector gross profit margin increased by 110 basis points to 10.1% in the six months ended June 30,
2012 compared to 9.0% in the six months ended June 30, 2011. The increase in Public Sector gross profit and gross profit margin was primarily due to an
increase in selling margin and an increase in vendor consideration.
Gross profit for our MacMall/OnSale segment increased by $0.5 million, or 4%, to $12.6 million in the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to
$12.1 million in the six months ended June 30, 2011. MacMall/OnSale gross profit margin increased by 90 basis points to 11.3% in the six months ended
June 30, 2012 compared to 10.4% in the six months ended June 30, 2011. The increase in our MacMall/OnSale gross profit and gross margin was primarily
due to an increase in selling margin as well as a 14 basis point increase in vendor consideration as a percentage of sales.
Operating Profit (Loss) and Operating Profit (Loss) Margin. The following table presents our operating profit and operating profit margin, by segment,
for the periods presented (dollars in thousands):
Six Months Ended
June 30,
2011
Operating
Profit (Loss)

SMB
MME
Public Sector
MacMall
Corporate and Other
Consolidated operating profit
and operating profit margin

$

18,940
14,434
(204)
1,073
(30,689)

$

3,554

2010
Operating
Profit (Loss)
Margin(1)

Operating
Profit (Loss)

8.1% $
5.0
(0.3)
1.0
(4.4)(1)
0.5%

$

18,189
12,856
(303)
599
(26,845)
4,496

Operating
Profit (Loss)
Margin(1)

Change
$

Margin

6.7% $
5.4
(0.4)
0.5
(3.8)(1)

751
1,578
99
474
(3,844)

$

(942 )

0.6%

1.4%
(0.4)
0.1
0.5
(0.6)(1)
(0.1)%

(1) Operating profit margin for Corporate and Other is computed based on consolidated net sales. Operating profit margin for each of the other segments is
computed based on the respective segment’s net sales.
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Consolidated operating profit for the six months ended June 30, 2012 was $3.6 million compared to $4.5 million in the six months ended June 30, 2011,
a decrease of $0.9 million, or 21%. Consolidated operating profit margin for the six months ended June 30, 2012 was 0.5% compared to 0.6% in the six
months ended June 30, 2011.
Our SMB segment operating profit increased by $0.7 million, or 4%, to $18.9 million in the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to $18.2 million in
the six months ended June 30, 2011. This increase resulted primarily from a decrease bad debt expense of $0.3 million and improvements in a number of
components of selling, general and administrative expenses, partially offset by the SMB gross profit decrease discussed above and a $0.3 million increase in
personnel costs primarily due to increased variable compensation expenses related to higher selling margin for SMB’s core business.
Our MME segment operating profit increased by $1.5 million, or 12%, to $14.4 million in the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to $12.9 million
in the six months ended June 30, 2011. The increase was primarily due to the increase in MME gross profit discussed above, partially offset by a $0.8 million
increase in personnel costs, a $0.6 million increase in depreciation and amortization expenses primarily related to the acceleration of our SARCOM and NSPI
trademark amortization in connection with our rebranding strategy, and a $0.4 million increase in variable fulfillment costs. The increase in personnel costs
was primarily related to an increase in unutilized service labor and a $0.3 million increase in employee severance costs. Operating profit for the six months
ended June 30, 2012 also included a $0.2 million benefit from a decrease in the estimated fair value of the contingent consideration liability related to our
NSPI acquisition, compared to a $0.8 million benefit recorded in the six months ended June 30, 2011.
Our Public Sector segment reported an operating loss of $0.2 million in the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to $0.3 million in the six months
ended June 30, 2011. The decrease in Public Sector operating loss was primarily due to the increase in Public Sector gross profit discussed above, partially
offset by a $0.9 million increase in personnel costs.
MacMall/OnSale segment operating profit increased by $0.5 million, or 79%, to $1.1 million in the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to $0.6
million in the six months ended June 30, 2011. The increase in MacMall/OnSale segment operating profit was primarily due to the increase in
MacMall/OnSale segment gross profit discussed above and a decrease in outside service costs of $0.5 million, a decrease in legal costs of $0.4 million and a
decrease in credit card related costs of $0.3 million, partially offset by an increase in personnel costs of $0.8 million.
Corporate and Other operating expenses increased by $3.9 million, or 14%, to $30.7 million in the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $26.8 million in
the six months ended June 30, 2011. The increase in the six months ended June 30, 2012 was primarily related to a $2.7 million increase in personnel costs
primarily supporting continued investments in IT and professional and pre-sales support services, and a $0.9 million increase in depreciation expense
associated with the completed portions of our on-going systems upgrades, partially offset by a $0.3 million decrease in litigation costs primarily related to
defending in the prior year what we believe was a meritless lawsuit which was settled in January 2012 without liability to the company.
Net Interest Expense. Total net interest expense for the six months ended June 30, 2012 increased to $1.8 million compared to $1.6 million in the six
months ended June 30, 2011. The increase in interest expense of $0.2 million resulted primarily from an increase in our average total outstanding borrowings,
primarily related to the financing of our new El Segundo headquarters office building and an increase in amortization expense related to deferred financing
costs, partially offset by a decrease in our average effective borrowing rate.
Income Tax Expense. We recorded an income tax expense of $0.7 million in the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to an income tax expense of
$1.2 million in the six months ended June 30, 2011. Our effective tax rates for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 were approximately 44% and
40%.
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Working Capital. Our primary capital need has historically been funding the working capital requirements created by our growth in sales and strategic
acquisitions. We expect that our primary capital needs will continue to be the funding of our existing working capital requirements, capital expenditures for
which we expect to include substantial investments in a new ERP system, eCommerce platform and an upgrade of our current IT infrastructure over the next
several years, which are discussed below in “Other Planned Capital Projects,” possible sales growth, possible acquisitions and new business ventures,
including our announced rebranding strategy and possible repurchases of our common stock under a discretionary repurchase program, which is discussed
below. Our primary sources of financing have historically come from borrowings from financial institutions, public and private issuances of our common
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stock and cash flows from operations. Our continuing efforts to drive revenue growth from commercial customers could result in an increase in our accounts
receivable as these customers are generally provided longer payment terms than consumers. We historically have increased our inventory levels from time to
time to take advantage of strategic manufacturer promotions. We believe that our current working capital, including our existing cash balance, together with
our expected future cash flows from operations and available borrowing capacity under our line of credit, will be adequate to support our current operating
plans for at least the next 12 months. However, the current uncertainty in the macroeconomic environment may limit our cash resources that could otherwise
be available to fund future strategic opportunities, capital investments or growth beyond our current operating plans. We are also unable to quantify any
synergies or expected costs related to our recently announced rebranding strategy.
There has been ongoing weakness and uncertainty in the global economic environment, coupled with disruptions in the capital and credit markets. While
our revolving credit facility does not mature until March 2015, we believe continued problems in these areas could have a negative impact on our ability to
obtain future financing if we need additional funds, such as for acquisitions or expansion, to fund a significant downturn in our sales or an increase in our
operating expenses, or to take advantage of opportunities or favorable market conditions in the future. We may seek additional financing from public or
private debt or equity issuances; however, there can be no assurance that such financing will be available at acceptable terms, if at all. Also, there can be no
assurance that the cost or availability of future borrowings, if any, under our credit facility or in the debt markets will not be impacted by disruptions in the
capital and credit markets.
We had cash and cash equivalents of $8.6 million at June 30, 2012 and $9.5 million at December 31, 2011. Our working capital was $52.8 million as of
June 30, 2012 and $45.3 million as of December 31, 2011.
In October 2008, our Board of Directors approved a discretionary common stock repurchase program for up to $10 million of our common stock in
aggregate with all other repurchases made under any repurchase programs following the date of such Board of Directors’ approval. This repurchase program
effectively superseded an earlier repurchase program adopted in 1996. Under this new program, the shares may be repurchased from time to time at prevailing
market prices, through open market or unsolicited negotiated transactions, depending on market conditions. We expect that any repurchases of our common
stock under this program will be financed with existing working capital and amounts available under our existing credit facility. No limit was placed on the
duration of the repurchase program. There is no guarantee as to the exact number of shares that we will repurchase. Subject to applicable securities laws,
repurchases may be made at such times and in such amounts as our management deems appropriate. The program can also be discontinued at any time
management feels additional purchases are not warranted. From the inception of the program in October 2008 through December 31, 2011, we had
repurchased an aggregate total of 1,956,506 shares of our common stock for a cost of $8.7 million. The repurchased shares are held as treasury stock. We did
not repurchase any of our common stock during the six months ended June 30, 2012.
We maintain a Canadian call center serving the U.S. market, which has historically received the benefit of labor credits under a Canadian government
program. In 2007, we received an eligibility certificate to participate in the Investment Quebec Refundable Tax Credit for Major Employment Generating
Projects (GPCE). In addition to other eligibility requirements, we are required to maintain a minimum of 317 eligible employees employed by our subsidiary
PC Mall Canada, Inc. in the province of Quebec at all times to remain eligible to apply annually for these labor credits. As a result of this new certification,
we are eligible to make annual labor credit claims for eligible employees equal to 25% of eligible salaries, but not to exceed $15,000 (Canadian) per eligible
employee per year, beginning in fiscal year 2008 and continuing through fiscal year 2016. As of June 30, 2012, we had an aggregate accrued receivable of
$8.9 million related to the 2010 and 2011 calendar years and the first six months of 2012. We expect to file our 2011 claim in 2012 and we expect to receive
full payment under our remaining accrued labor credits receivable.
Cash Flows from Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities in the six months ended June 30, 2012 was $21.3 million, primarily due
to a $10.8 million decrease in accounts receivable and an $8.3 million increase in accounts payable. The decrease in accounts receivable reflects the payment
received related to certain large sales near the end of 2011 as well as normal seasonality between the fourth quarter and the first half of the year thereafter. The
increase in accounts payable is primarily due to the mix and timing of trade payables, including our management of the utilization of early pay discounts.
Net cash used in operating activities in the six months ended June 30, 2011 was $8.6 million, primarily due to a reduction in accounts payable of $29.5
million based upon timing of payments to certain vendors, partially offset by a $6.6 million increase in deferred revenues, a $5.3 million decrease in
inventory and a $4.9 million decrease in accounts receivable, both due generally to normal seasonality between the fourth quarter and the first half of the
year thereafter.
Cash Flows from Investing Activities. Net cash used in investing activities was $5.1 million in the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to $17.0
million in the six months ended June 30, 2011. The $5.1 million of net cash used in investing activities in the six months ended June 30, 2012 was due to
capital expenditures relating to investments in our IT infrastructure and the creation of enhanced electronic tools for our account executives and sales support
staff. Capital expenditures of $17.0 million in the six months ended June 30, 2011 were primarily related to investments in our IT infrastructure and the
creation of enhanced electronic tools for our account executives and sales support staff, the $9.6 million purchase of a new headquarters office building in El
Segundo, California, as discussed above, and the $2.3 million acquisition of certain assets of eCost.
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Cash Flows from Financing Activities. Net cash used in financing activities in the six months ended June 30, 2012 was $17.2 million compared to net
cash provided by financing activities in the six months ended June 30, 2011 of $21.0 million. The $17.2 million of net cash used in financing activities in
the six months ended June 30, 2012 was primarily related to $20.1 million of net payments made on the outstanding balance of our line of credit, partially
offset by $4.4 million of proceeds resulting from capital leases entered into during the quarter but relating to assets acquired in prior periods. The $21.0
million of net cash provided by financing activities in the six months ended June 30, 2011 was primarily related to $7.2 million of borrowings under a new
note payable to finance a part of the purchase price of the building in El Segundo, a $7.7 million change in book overdraft and a $5.8 million of net
borrowings on our line of credit.
Line of Credit and Note Payable. We maintain an asset-based revolving credit facility of up to $160 million from a lending unit of a large commercial
bank. The credit facility provides for, among other things, (i) a credit limit of $160 million, which may be increased in increments of $5 million up to a total
credit limit of $180 million, provided that any increase of the total credit limit in excess of $160 million is subject to, among other things, an acceptance and
commitment by the lenders to such excess amount and a line increase fee not to exceed 0.65% of the increased amount; (ii) LIBOR interest rate options that
we can enter into with no limit on the maximum outstanding principal balance which may be subject to a LIBOR interest rate option; and (iii) a maturity date
of March 31, 2015. The credit facility, which functions as a working capital line of credit with a borrowing base of inventory and accounts receivable,
including certain credit card receivables, also includes a monthly unused line fee of 0.25% per year on the amount, if any, by which the Maximum Credit, as
defined in the agreement, then in effect, exceeds the average daily principal balance of the outstanding borrowings during the immediately preceding month.
There can be no assurance that the lenders, if we elected to increase the credit limit, will commit to the remaining excess $20 million of credit beyond the
$160 million in any future period. As a result, we may not be able to access the credit facility beyond its current limit of $160 million.
The credit facility is collateralized by substantially all of our assets. In addition to the security interest required by the credit facility, certain of our
vendors have security interests in some of our assets related to their products. The credit facility has as its single financial covenant a minimum fixed charge
coverage ratio (FCCR) requirement in the event an FCCR triggering event has occurred. An FCCR triggering event is comprised of maintaining certain
specified daily and average excess availability thresholds. In the event the FCCR covenant applies, the fixed charge coverage ratio is 1.0 to 1.0 for each
twelve-month period. At June 30, 2012, we were in compliance with our financial covenant.
Loan availability under the line of credit fluctuates daily and is affected by many factors, including eligible assets on-hand, opportunistic purchases of
inventory and availability and utilization of early-pay discounts. At June 30, 2012, we had $71.8 million of net working capital advances outstanding under
the line of credit. At June 30, 2012, the maximum credit line was $160 million and we had $62.9 million available to borrow for working capital advances
under the line of credit.
In connection with and as part of the amended credit facility, we entered into an amended term note on December 14, 2010 with a principal balance of
$2.87 million, payable in equal monthly principal installments beginning on January 1, 2011, plus interest at the prime rate with a LIBOR option. The
amended term note matures in December 2017 or in the event of a default, termination or non-renewal of our credit facility, is payable in its entirety upon
demand by our lender. At June 30, 2012, we had $2.26 million outstanding under the amended term note. The remaining balance of our term note matures as
follows: $205,000 in the remainder of 2012 and $410,000 annually in each of the years 2012 through 2017.
At June 30, 2012, our effective weighted average annual interest rate on outstanding amounts under the credit facility and term note was 2.38%.
At June 30, 2012, $0.1 million relating to the financing of our purchase of Microsoft AX (Axapta), which is a part of our ERP upgrade, were included in
our “Notes payable — current” on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. See “Other Planned Capital Projects” below for a detailed discussion.
In June 2011, we entered into a credit agreement to finance the acquisition and improvement of real property we purchased in March 2011 in El Segundo,
California. The credit agreement provides for a lending commitment for a loan up to $10.9 million with a five year term and a 25 year straight-line principal
repayment amortization period with a balloon payment at maturity. Interest is variable, indexed to Prime plus a spread of 0.375% or LIBOR plus a spread of
2.375% at our option, payable monthly. At June 30, 2012, we had $9.9 million outstanding under this credit agreement. The loan is secured by the real
property and contains financial covenants substantially similar to those of our existing asset-based credit facility.
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The carrying amounts of our line of credit borrowings and notes payable approximate their fair value based upon the current rates offered to us for
obligations of similar terms and remaining maturities.
Other Planned Capital Projects
We are currently upgrading many of our IT systems. We have purchased licenses for Microsoft Dynamics AX (Axapta) and other related tools, such as
workflow software, web development tools and other related items, to upgrade our ERP and eCommerce systems. We initiated the implementation and
upgrade of our eCommerce system in the second half of 2008 and have completed and launched a new generation of our public sites at macmall.com,
onsale.com and pcmall.com. We are currently working on the implementation of the ERP modules and the upgrade of the ERP systems, including additional
enhancements and features, and we expect to be complete with all major phases of the implementation of the ERP systems by the end of 2013. We believe the
implementation and upgrade should help us to gain further efficiencies across our organization. While it is difficult to estimate costs based on the complexity
of the systems design, customization and implementation, based on our estimates, which are subject to change, we currently expect to incur a cost of
approximately $16 million for the major phases of these IT system upgrades. To date, we have incurred approximately $12.6 million of such costs. In
addition to the above expenditures, we expect on an ongoing basis to make periodic upgrades to our IT systems.
Inflation
Inflation has not had a material impact on our operating results; however, there can be no assurance that inflation will not have a material impact on our
business in the future.
Dividend Policy
We have never paid cash dividends on our capital stock and our credit facility prohibits us from paying any cash dividends on our capital stock.
Therefore, we do not currently anticipate paying dividends; we intend to retain any earnings to finance the growth and development of our business.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of June 30, 2012, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.
Contingencies
For a discussion of contingencies, see Part I, Item 1, Note 10 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this report, which is incorporated
herein by reference.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(the “Securities Act”) and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Such statements include statements
regarding our expectations, hopes or intentions regarding the future, including but not limited to, statements regarding our strategies, competition, markets,
vendors, expenses, new services and technologies, growth prospects, financing, revenue, margins, operations, litigation and compliance with applicable laws.
In particular, the following types of statements are forward-looking:
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

our use of management information systems and their need for future support or upgrade;
our expectations regarding the timing and costs of our ongoing or planned IT upgrades;
our ability to execute and benefit from our business strategies; including but not limited to, business strategies related to and strategic investments in
our IT systems, our brand strategy, our efforts to expand our sales of value-added services and solutions offerings, and real estate acquisitions and
dispositions;
our expectations regarding the potential sale, exchange and/or acquisition of certain real property assets, and the timing of such transactions;
our cost reduction strategies and plans, including timing, expected cost savings, the uses of those savings, the timing and amount of payments, the
impact on our business, and the amounts of future charges to complete our such plans;
our expectations regarding key executives and management and our ability to retain such individuals;
our competitive advantages and growth opportunities;
our ability to increase profitability and revenues;
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·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

our expectations to continue our efforts to increase the productivity of our sales force and reduce costs;
our ability to generate vendor supported marketing;
our acquisition strategy and the impact of any past or future acquisitions;
the impact of acquisitions on our financial condition, liquidity and our future cash flows and earnings;
our expectation regarding general economic uncertainties and the related potential negative impact on our profit and profit margins, as well as our
financial condition, liquidity and future cash flows;
our expectations regarding our future capital needs and the availability of working capital, liquidity, cash flows from operations and borrowings
under our credit facility and other long-term debt;
the expected results or profitability of any of our individual business units in future periods;
the impact on accounts receivable from our efforts to focus on sales in our MME, SMB, and Public Sector segments;
our ability to penetrate the public sector market;
our beliefs relating to the benefits to be received from our Philippines office and Canadian call center, including tax credits and reduction in labor
costs over time;
our belief regarding our exposure to currency exchange and interest rate risks;
our ability to attract new customers and stimulate additional purchases from existing customers, including our expectations regarding future
advertising levels and the effect on consumer sales;
our ability to leverage our market position and purchasing power and offer a wide selection of products at competitive prices;
our expectations regarding the ability of our marketing programs or campaigns to stimulate additional purchases or to maximize product sales;
our belief that the use of extranets has the potential to yield additional sales opportunities and the ability to reach new customer bases;
our ability to limit risk related to price reductions;
our belief regarding the effect of seasonal trends and general economic conditions on our business and results of operations across all of our segments;
our expectations regarding competition and the industry trend toward consolidation;
our expectations regarding the payment of dividends and our intention to retain any earnings to finance the growth and development of our business;
our compliance with laws and regulations;
our beliefs regarding the applicability of tax statutes, regulations and governmental tax regulatory positions;
our expectations regarding the impact of accounting pronouncements;
our belief regarding financing of repurchases of our common stock;
our belief that backlog is not useful for predicting our future sales;
our belief that our existing distribution facilities are adequate for our current and foreseeable future needs; and
the likelihood that new laws and regulations will be adopted with respect to the Internet, privacy and data security that may impose additional
restrictions or burdens on our business.

Forward-looking statements involve certain risks and uncertainties, and actual results may differ materially from those discussed in any such statement.
Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from such forward-looking statements include the risks described in greater detail under the
heading “Risk Factors” in Part II, Item 1A of this report. All forward-looking statements in this document are made as of the date hereof, based on information
available to us as of the date hereof, and, except as otherwise required by law, we assume no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement or
other information contained herein to reflect new information, events or circumstances after the date hereof.
ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Our financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents and long-term debt. At June 30, 2012, the carrying values of our financial instruments
approximated their fair values based on current market prices and rates.
We have not entered into derivative financial instruments as of June 30, 2012. However, from time-to-time, we contemplate and may enter into derivative
financial instruments related to interest rate, foreign currency, and other market risks.
Interest Rate Risk
We have exposure to the risks of fluctuating interest rates on our line of credit and note payable. The variable interest rates on our line of credit and note
payable are tied to the prime rate or the LIBOR, at our discretion. At June 30, 2012, we had $71.8 million outstanding under our line of credit and $12.2
million outstanding under our notes payable. As of June 30, 2012, the hypothetical impact of a one percentage point increase in interest rate related to the
outstanding borrowings under our line of credit and note payable would be to increase our annual interest expense by approximately $0.8 million.
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Foreign Currency Exchange Risk
We have operation centers in Canada and the Philippines that provide back-office administrative support and customer service support. In each of these
countries, transactions are primarily conducted in the respective local currencies. In addition, our two foreign subsidiaries that operate the operation centers
have intercompany accounts with our U.S. subsidiaries that eliminate upon consolidation. However, transactions resulting in such accounts expose us to
foreign currency rate fluctuations. We record gains and losses resulting from exchange rate fluctuations on our short-term intercompany accounts in “Selling,
general and administrative expenses” in our Consolidated Statements of Operations and translation gains and losses resulting from exchange rate fluctuations
on local currency based assets and liabilities in “Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss),” a separate component of stockholders’ equity on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets. As such, we have foreign currency translation exposure for changes in exchange rates for these currencies. As of June 30, 2012,
we did not have material foreign currency or overall currency exposure. Significant changes in exchange rates between foreign currencies in which we
transact business and the U.S. dollar may adversely affect our Consolidated Statements of Operations and our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based upon this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of June 30, 2012.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
No change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) occurred during the
second quarter of 2012 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
PART II - OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
We are not currently a party to any material legal proceedings, other than ordinary routine litigation incidental to the business. From time to time, we
receive claims of and become subject to consumer protection, employment, intellectual property and other litigation related to the conduct of our business.
Any such litigation could be costly and time consuming and could divert our management and key personnel from our business operations. In connection
with any such litigation, we may be subject to significant damages or equitable remedies relating to the operation of our business. Any such litigation may
materially harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
This report and other documents we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission contain forward looking statements that are based on current
expectations, estimates, forecasts and projections about us, our future performance, our business, our beliefs and our management’s assumptions. These
statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve certain risks, uncertainties, and assumptions that are difficult to predict. You should
carefully consider the risks and uncertainties facing our business which are set forth below. The risks described below are not the only ones facing us. Our
business is also subject to risks that affect many other companies, such as employment relations, general economic conditions, geopolitical events and
international operations. Further, additional risks not currently known to us or that we currently believe are immaterial also may impair our business,
operations, liquidity and stock price materially and adversely.
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Our success is in part dependent on the accuracy and proper utilization of our management information systems.
We have committed significant resources to the development of sophisticated computer systems that are used to manage our business. Our computer
systems support phone and web-based sales, marketing, purchasing, accounting, customer service, warehousing and distribution, and facilitate the
preparation of daily operating control reports which are designed to provide concise and timely information regarding key aspects of our business. The
systems allow us to, among other things, monitor sales trends, make informed purchasing decisions, and provide product availability and order status
information. In addition to the main computer systems, we have systems of networked personal computers across all of our U.S. and foreign locations. We also
use our management information systems to manage our inventory. We believe that in order to remain competitive, we will need to upgrade our management
information systems on a regular basis, which could require significant capital expenditures.
We are currently upgrading many of our IT systems. We have purchased licenses for Microsoft Dynamics AX (Axapta) and other related tools, such as
workflow software, web development tools and other related items, to upgrade our ERP and eCommerce systems. We initiated the implementation and
upgrade of our eCommerce system in the second half of 2008 and have completed and launched a new generation of our public sites at macmall.com,
onsale.com, ecost.com and pcmall.com. We are currently working on the implementation of the ERP modules and the upgrade of the ERP systems, including
additional enhancements and features, and we expect to be complete with all phases of the implementation of the ERP systems by the end of 2013.
Our success is dependent on the accuracy and proper utilization of our management information systems and our telephone system. In addition to the
costs associated with system upgrades, the transition to and implementation of new or upgraded systems can result in system delays or failures. We currently
operate one of our management information systems using an HP3000 Enterprise System, which was supported by HP until December 2010. We have had a
contract for the last three years with a third party service provider, who specializes in maintenance and support of both hardware and operating system, to
provide us adequate support until the completion of the upgrade of our management information system, which is expected to be completed by the end of
2013.
In addition to the specifically discussed IT and phone system upgrades discussed above, we also regularly upgrade our systems in an effort to better meet
the information requirements of our users, and believe that to remain competitive, it will be necessary for us to upgrade our management information systems
on a regular basis in the future. The implementation of any upgrades is complex, in part, because of the wide range of processes and the multiple systems that
may need to be integrated across our business.
In connection with any system upgrades, we generally create a project plan to provide a reasonable allocation of resources to the project; however,
execution of any such plan, or a divergence from it, may result in cost overruns, project delays or business interruptions. Furthermore, any divergence from
any such project plan could affect the timing or the extent of benefits we may expect to achieve from the system or any process efficiencies. Any such project
delays, business interruptions or loss of expected benefits could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.
Any disruptions, delays or deficiencies in the design, operation or implementation of our IT systems, or in the performance of our systems, particularly
any disruptions, delays or deficiencies that impact our operations, could adversely affect our ability to effectively run and manage our business, including
our ability to receive, process, ship and bill for orders in a timely manner or our ability to properly manage our inventory or accurately present our inventory
availability or pricing. We do not currently have a redundant or back-up telephone system, nor do we have complete redundancy for our management
information systems. Any interruption, corruption, deficiency or delay in our management information systems, including those caused by natural disasters,
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.
Changes and uncertainties in the economic climate could negatively affect the rate of information technology spending by our customers, which would
likely have an impact on our business.
An important element of our business strategy is to increasingly focus on SMB, MME and Public Sector sales. As a result of the ongoing economic
uncertainties, the direction and relative strength of the U.S. economy remains a considerable risk to our business, operating results and financial condition.
This economic uncertainty could also increase the risk of uncollectible accounts receivable from our customers. During the recent economic downturns in the
U.S. and elsewhere, SMB, MME and Public Sector entities generally reduced, often substantially, their rate of information technology spending.
Additionally, these recent weak economic conditions and consumer confidence resulted in a decline in consumer spending on technology and related
consumer goods. Future changes and uncertainties in the economic climate in the U.S. and elsewhere could have a similar negative impact on the rate of
information technology spending of our current and potential customers, which would likely have a negative impact on our business, operating results and
financial condition, and could significantly hinder our growth and prevent us from achieving our financial performance goals.
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Our earnings and growth rate could be adversely affected by negative changes in economic or geopolitical conditions.
We are subject to risks arising from adverse changes in domestic and global economic conditions and unstable geopolitical conditions. If economic
growth in the United States and other countries’ economies slows or declines, consumer and business spending rates could be significantly reduced. This
could result in reductions in sales of our products, longer sales and payment cycles, slower adoption of new technologies and increased price competition,
any of which could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. Weak general economic conditions or
uncertainties in geopolitical conditions, such as those currently occurring for example in the Middle East, could adversely impact our revenue, expenses and
growth rate. In addition, our revenue, gross margins and earnings could deteriorate in the future as a result of unfavorable economic or geopolitical
conditions.
Our revenue is dependent on sales of products from a small number of key manufacturers, and a decline in sales of products from these manufacturers
could materially harm our business.
Our revenue is dependent on sales of products from a small number of key manufacturers and software publishers, including Apple, Cisco, HP, IBM,
Lenovo, Microsoft and Dell. For example, products manufactured by Apple accounted for approximately 17% and 21% of our net sales in the three months
ended June 30, 2012 and 2011. Products manufactured by HP represented 20% and 22% of our net sales in the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.
A decline in sales of any of our key manufacturers’ products, whether due to decreases in supply of or demand for their products, termination of any of our
agreements with them, or otherwise, could have a material adverse impact on our sales and operating results.
Certain of our vendors provide us with incentives and other assistance that reduce our operating costs, and any decline in these incentives and other
assistance could materially harm our operating results.
Certain of our vendors, including Adobe, Apple, Cisco, Dell, HP, IBM, Ingram Micro, Lenovo, Microsoft and Tech Data, provide us with trade credit or
substantial incentives in the form of discounts, credits and cooperative advertising and certain licenses to use their technology in the operation of our
business at no or significantly reduced cost. We have agreements with many of our vendors under which they provide us, or they have otherwise consistently
provided us, with market development funds to finance portions of our catalog publication and distribution costs based upon the amount of coverage we give
to their respective products in our catalogs or other advertising mediums. Any termination or interruption of our relationships with one or more of these
vendors, particularly Apple or HP, or modification of the terms or discontinuance of our agreements and market development fund programs and
arrangements with these vendors, could adversely affect our operating income and cash flow. For example, the amount of vendor consideration we receive
from a particular vendor may be impacted by a number of events outside of our control, including acquisitions, management changes or economic pressures
affecting such vendor, any of which could materially affect the amount of vendor consideration we receive from such vendor.
We do not have long-term supply agreements or guaranteed price or delivery arrangements with our vendors.
In most cases we have no guaranteed price or delivery arrangements with our vendors. As a result, we have experienced and may in the future experience
inventory shortages on certain products. Furthermore, our industry occasionally experiences significant product supply shortages and customer order
backlogs due to the inability of certain manufacturers to supply certain products as needed. We cannot assure you that suppliers will maintain an adequate
supply of products to fulfill our orders on a timely basis, or at all, or that we will be able to obtain particular products on favorable terms or at all.
Additionally, we cannot assure you that product lines currently offered by suppliers will continue to be available to us. A decline in the supply or continued
availability of the products of our vendors, or a significant increase in the price of those products, could reduce our sales and negatively affect our operating
results.
Substantially all of our agreements with vendors are terminable within 30 days.
Substantially all of our agreements with vendors are terminable upon 30 days’ notice or less. For example, while we are an authorized dealer for the full
retail line of HP and Apple products, HP and Apple can terminate our dealer agreements upon 30 days’ notice. Vendors that currently sell their products
through us could decide to sell, or increase their sales of, their products directly or through other resellers or channels. Any termination, interruption or
adverse modification of our relationship with a key vendor or a significant number of other vendors would likely adversely affect our operating income, cash
flow and future prospects.
Our success is dependent in part upon the ability of our vendors to develop and market products that meet changes in marketplace demand, as well as
our ability to sell popular products from new vendors.
The products we sell are generally subject to rapid technological change and related changes in marketplace demand. Our success is dependent in part
upon the ability of our vendors to develop and market products that meet these changes in marketplace demand. Our success is also dependent on our ability
to develop relationships with and sell products from new vendors that address these changes in marketplace demand. To the extent products that address
changes in marketplace demand are not available to us, or are not available to us in sufficient quantities or on acceptable terms, we could encounter increased
price and other competition, which would likely adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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We may not be able to maintain existing or build new vendor relationships, which may affect our ability to offer a broad selection of products at
competitive prices and negatively impact our results of operations.
We purchase products for resale both directly from manufacturers and indirectly through distributors and other sources, all of whom we consider our
vendors. We also maintain certain qualifications and preferred provider status with several of our vendors, which provides us with preferred pricing, vendor
training and support, preferred access to products, and other significant benefits. While these vendor relationships are an important element of our business,
we do not have long-term agreements with any of these vendors. Any agreements with vendors governing our purchase of products are generally terminable
by either party upon 30 days’ notice or less. In general, we agree to offer products through our catalogs and on our websites and the vendors agree to provide
us with information about their products and honor our customer service policies. If we do not maintain our existing relationships or build new relationships
with vendors on acceptable terms, including favorable product pricing and vendor consideration, we may not be able to offer a broad selection of products or
continue to offer products at competitive prices. In addition, some vendors may decide not to offer particular products for sale on the Internet, and others may
avoid offering their new products to retailers offering a mix of close-out and refurbished products in addition to new products. From time to time, vendors
may be acquired by other companies, terminate our right to sell some or all of their products, modify or terminate our preferred provider or qualification
status, change the applicable terms and conditions of sale or reduce or discontinue the incentives or vendor consideration that they offer us. Any such
termination or the implementation of such changes, or our failure to build new vendor relationships, could have a negative impact on our operating results.
Additionally, some products are subject to manufacturer or distributor allocation, which limits the number of units of those products that are available to us
and may adversely affect our operating results.
Narrow gross margins magnify the impact of variations in operating costs and of adverse or unforeseen events on operating results.
We are subject to intense price competition with respect to the products, services and solutions we sell. As a result, our gross margins have historically
been narrow, and we expect them to continue to be narrow. During the recent economic downturn, we experienced increasing price competition, which had a
negative impact on our gross margins. Narrow gross margins magnify the impact of variations in operating costs and of adverse or unforeseen events on
operating results. Future increases in costs such as the cost of merchandise, wage levels, shipping rates, freight costs and fuel costs may negatively impact our
margins and profitability. We are not always able to raise the sales price to offset cost increases. If we are unable to maintain our gross margins in the future, it
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. In addition, because price is an important competitive factor
in our industry, we cannot assure you that we will not be subject to increased price competition in the future. If we become subject to increased price
competition in the future, we cannot assure you that we will not lose market share, that we will not be forced to reduce our prices and further reduce our gross
margins, or that we will be able to compete effectively.
We experience variability in our net sales and net income on a quarterly basis as a result of many factors.
We experience variability in our net sales and net income on a quarterly basis as a result of many factors. These factors include:
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

the general economic environment and competitive conditions, such as pricing;
the timing of procurement cycles by our business, government and educational institution customers;
seasonality in consumer spending;
variability in vendor programs;
the introduction of new products, services or solutions by us or our competitors;
changes in prices from our suppliers;
promotions;
the loss or consolidation of significant suppliers or customers;
our ability to control costs;
the timing of our capital expenditures;
the condition of our industry in general;
seasonal shifts in demand for products, services or solutions we offer;
consumer acceptance of new purchasing models such as our daily deals offerings and the use of social commerce to drive sales;
industry announcements and market acceptance of new offerings or upgrades;
deferral of customer orders in anticipation of new offerings;
product or solution enhancements or operating system changes;
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·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

the relative mix of products, services and solutions sold during the period;
any inability on our part to obtain adequate quantities of products, services or solutions;
delays in the release by suppliers of new products or solutions and inventory adjustments;
our expenditures on new business ventures and acquisitions;
performance of acquired businesses;
adverse weather conditions that affect supply or customer response;
distribution or shipping to our customers; and
geopolitical events.

Our planned operating expenditures each quarter are based on sales forecasts for the quarter. If our sales do not meet expectations in any given quarter, our
operating results for the quarter may be materially adversely affected. Our narrow gross margins may magnify the impact of these factors on our operating
results. We believe that period-to-period comparisons of our operating results are not necessarily a good indication of our future performance. In addition, our
results in any quarterly period are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for a full fiscal year. In future quarters, our operating results may be
below the expectations of public market analysts or investors and as a result the market price of our common stock could be materially adversely affected.
Our focus on SMB, MME and Public Sector sales presents numerous risks and challenges, and may not improve our profitability or result in expanded
market share.
An important element of our business strategy is to focus on SMB, MME and Public Sector sales and related market share growth. In competing in these
markets, we face numerous risks and challenges, including competition from a wider range of sources and the need to continually develop and enhance
strategic relationships. We cannot assure you that our focus on SMB, MME and Public Sector sales will result in expanded market share or increased
profitability. Furthermore, revenue from our public sector business is derived from sales to federal, state and local governmental departments and agencies, as
well as to educational institutions, through various contracts and open market sales. Government contracting is a highly regulated area, and noncompliance
with government procurement regulations or contract provisions could result in civil, criminal, and administrative liability, including substantial monetary
fines or damages, termination of government contracts, and suspension, debarment or ineligibility from doing business with the government. The effect of
any of these possible actions by any governmental department or agency with which we contract could adversely affect our business or results of operations.
Moreover, contracting with governmental departments and agencies involves additional risks, such as longer payment terms, limited recourse against the
government agency in the event of a business dispute, requirements that we provide representations, warranties and indemnities related to the products,
services and solutions we sell, the potential lack of a limitation of our liability for damages from our product sales or our provision of services to the
department or agency, and the potential for changes in statutory or regulatory provisions that negatively affect the profitability of such contracts. Similarly,
our MME, and to some extent, our SMB businesses also require us to regularly enter into complex contractual relationships involving various risks and
uncertainties such as requirements that we provide representations, warranties and indemnities to our customers and potential lack of limitation of our
liability for damages under some of such contracts.
Our investments in our outbound phone-based sales force model may not improve our profitability or result in expanded market share.
We have made and are currently making efforts to increase our market share by investing in training and retention of our outbound phone-based sales
force. We have also incurred, and expect to continue to incur, significant expenses resulting from infrastructure investments related to our outbound phonebased sales force. We cannot assure you that any of our investments in our outbound phone-based sales force will result in expanded market share or
increased profitability in the near or long term.
Our financial performance could be adversely affected if we are not able to retain and increase the experience of our sales force or if we are not able to
maintain or increase their productivity.
Our sales and operating results may be adversely affected if we are unable to increase the average tenure of our account executives or if the sales volumes
and profitability achieved by our account executives do not increase with their increased experience.
Existing or future government and tax laws and regulations and related risks could expose us to liabilities or costly changes in our business operations,
and could reduce demand for our products and services.
Based upon current interpretations of existing law, certain of our subsidiaries currently collect and remit sales or use tax only on sales of products or
services to residents of the states in which the respective subsidiaries have a physical presence or have voluntarily registered for sales tax collection. The U.S.
Supreme Court has ruled that states, absent Congressional legislation, may not impose tax collection obligations on an out-of-state direct marketer whose
only contacts with the taxing state are distribution of catalogs and other advertisement materials through the mail, and whose subsequent delivery of
purchased goods is by mail or interstate common carriers.
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However, we cannot predict the level of contact with any state which would give rise to future or past tax collection obligations. Additionally, it is possible
that federal legislation could be enacted that would permit states to impose sales or use tax collection obligations on out-of-state direct marketers.
Furthermore, court cases have upheld tax collection obligations on companies, including mail order companies, whose contacts with the taxing state were
quite limited (e.g., visiting the state several times a year to aid customers or to inspect stores stocking their goods or to provide training or other support to
customers in the state). States have also successfully imposed sales and use tax collection responsibility upon in-state manufacturers that agree to act as a
drop shipper for the out-of-state marketer, giving rise to the risk that such taxes may be imposed indirectly on the out-of-state seller. We believe our
operations in states in which we have no physical presence are different from the operations of the companies in those cases and are thus not subject to the tax
collection obligations imposed by those decisions. Various state laws, regulations and taxing authorities have sought to impose on direct marketers with no
physical presence in the taxing state the burden of collecting or reporting information related to state sales and use taxes on the sale of products shipped or
services sold to those states’ residents, and it is possible that such a requirement could be imposed in the future. For example, New York recently adopted an
affiliate marketing statute and related regulations that impose sales and use tax collection obligations on out-of-state sellers that use certain web-based
affiliate marketing relationships with web-based affiliates deemed to be located in New York. Other states have proposed similar legislation. There can be no
assurance that existing or future laws that impose taxes or other regulations on direct marketing or Internet commerce would not substantially impair our
growth or otherwise have a material adverse effect on our business, results or operations and financial condition.
In addition, we and our subsidiaries may be subject to state or local taxes on income or (in states such as Kentucky, Michigan, Ohio, Texas or
Washington) on gross receipts or a similar measure earned in a state even though we and our subsidiaries may have no physical presence in the state. State
and local governments may seek to impose such taxes in cases where they believe the taxpayer may have a significant economic presence by reason of
significant sales to customers located in the states. The responsibility to pay income and gross receipts taxes has also been the subject of court actions and
various legislative efforts. There can be no assurance that these taxes will not be imposed upon us and our subsidiaries.
We also are subject to general business laws and regulations, as well as laws and regulations specifically governing companies that do business over the
Internet. These laws and regulations may cover taxation of eCommerce, user privacy, marketing and promotional practices (including electronic
communications with our customers and potential customers), database protection, pricing, content, copyrights, distribution, electronic contracts and other
communications, consumer protection, product safety, the provision of online payment services, copyrights, patents and other intellectual property rights,
data security, unauthorized access (including the Computer Fraud and Abuse Act), and the characteristics and quality of products and services. Additionally,
some of our subsidiaries which are government contractors or subcontractors are subject to laws and regulations of the federal government related to
companies that sell to the federal government, including but not limited to regulations of the Department of Labor and laws and regulations related to our
procurement of products and services and our sales to the government.
While we have sought to implement processes, programs and systems in an effort to achieve compliance with existing laws and regulations applicable to
our business, many of these laws and regulations are unclear and have yet to be interpreted by courts, or may be subject to conflicting interpretations by
courts. Further, no assurances can be given that new laws or regulations will not be enacted or adopted, or that our processes, programs and systems will be
sufficient to comply with present or future laws or regulations, which might adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations.
Such existing and future laws and regulations may also impede our business. Additionally, it is not always clear how existing laws and regulations
governing issues such as property ownership, sales and other taxes, libel, trespass, data mining and collection, data security and personal privacy, among
other laws, apply to our businesses. Unfavorable resolution of these issues may expose us to liability and costly changes in our business operations, and
could reduce customer demand for our products, services and solutions.
The growth and demand for online commerce has and may continue to result in more stringent consumer protection laws that impose additional
compliance burdens on online companies. These consumer protection laws could result in substantial compliance costs and could decrease our profitability.
Further, additional regulation of the Internet may lead to a decrease in Internet usage, which could adversely affect our business. Growing public concern
about privacy and the collection, distribution and use of information about individuals may subject us to increased regulatory scrutiny or litigation. In the
past, the FTC has investigated companies that have used personally identifiable information without permission or in violation of a stated privacy policy. If
we are accused of violating the stated terms of our privacy policy or of data breach violations, we may face a loss of customers or damage to our reputation
and may be forced to expend significant amounts of financial and managerial resources to defend against these accusations, face potential liability and be
subject to extended regulatory oversight in the form of a long-term consent order.
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Data security laws are also becoming more widespread and burdensome in the United States, and increasingly require notification of affected individuals
and, in some instances, regulators. Moreover, third parties are engaging in increased cyber-attacks and other data theft efforts, and individuals are
increasingly subjected to theft of identity, medical or credit card or other financial account information. In addition to risks we face from cyber attacks or data
theft efforts directly targeted at our systems, we offer our products, services and solutions to companies, such as healthcare or financial institutions, under
contracts which may expose us to significant liabilities for data breaches or losses which could arise out of or result from products, services or solutions we
may sell to these institutions. There is a risk that we may fail to prevent such data theft or data breaches and that our customers or others may assert claims
against us as a result. In addition, the FTC and state consumer protection authorities have brought a number of enforcement actions against U.S. companies
for alleged deficiencies in those companies’ data security practices, and they may continue to bring such actions. Enforcement actions, which may or may not
be based upon actual cyber attacks or other breaches in data security, present an ongoing risk to us, could result in a loss of customers, damage to our
reputation and monetary damages.
Additionally, although historically only a small percentage of our total sales in any given quarter or year are made to customers outside of the continental
United States, there is a possibility that a foreign jurisdiction may take the position that our business is subject to its laws and regulations, which could
impose restrictions or burdens on us and expose us to tax and other potential liabilities and could also require costly changes to our business operations with
respect to those jurisdictions. In some cases, our sales related to foreign jurisdictions could also be subject to export control laws and foreign corrupt practice
laws and there is a risk that we could face allegations from U.S. or foreign governmental authorities alleging our failure to comply with the requirements of
such laws subjecting us to costly litigation and potential significant governmental penalties or fines.
Part of our business strategy includes the acquisition of other companies, and we may have difficulties integrating acquired companies into our
operations in a cost-effective manner, if at all.
One element of our business strategy involves expansion through the acquisition of businesses, assets, personnel or technologies that allow us to
complement our existing operations, expand our market coverage, or add new business capabilities. We continually evaluate and explore strategic
opportunities as they arise, including business combination transactions, strategic partnerships, and the purchase or sale of assets. Our acquisition strategy
depends on the availability of suitable acquisition candidates at reasonable prices and our ability to resolve challenges associated with integrating acquired
businesses into our existing business. No assurance can be given that the benefits or synergies we may expect from the acquisition of companies or businesses
will be realized to the extent or in the time frame we anticipate. We may lose key employees, customers, distributors, vendors and other business partners of
the companies we acquire following and continuing after announcement of acquisition plans. In addition, acquisitions may involve a number of risks and
difficulties, including expansion into new geographic markets and business areas, the diversion of management’s attention to the operations and personnel of
the acquired company, the integration of the acquired company’s personnel, operations and management information (ERP) systems, changing relationships
with customers, suppliers and strategic partners, and potential short-term adverse effects on our operating results. These challenges can be magnified as the
size of the acquisition increases. Any delays or unexpected costs incurred in connection with the integration of acquired companies or otherwise related to
the acquisitions could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Acquisitions may require large one-time charges and can result in increased debt or other contingent liabilities, adverse tax consequences, deferred
compensation charges, the recording and later amortization of amounts related to deferred compensation and certain purchased intangible assets, and the
refinement or revision of fair value acquisition estimates following the completion of acquisitions, any of which items could negatively impact our business,
financial condition and results of operations. In addition, we may record goodwill in connection with an acquisition and incur goodwill impairment charges
in the future. Any of these charges could cause the price of our common stock to decline.
An acquisition could absorb substantial cash resources, require us to incur or assume debt obligations, or involve our issuance of additional equity
securities. If we issue equity securities in connection with an acquisition, we may dilute our common stock with securities that have an equal or a senior
interest in our company. If we incur additional debt to pay for an acquisition, it may significantly reduce amounts that would otherwise be available under
our credit facility, increase our interest expense, leverage and debt service requirements and could negatively impact our ability to comply with applicable
financial covenants in our credit facility or limit our ability to obtain credit from our vendors. Acquired entities also may be highly leveraged or dilutive to
our earnings per share, or may have unknown liabilities. In addition, the combined entity may have lower revenues or higher expenses and therefore may not
achieve the anticipated results. Any of these factors relating to acquisitions could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.
We cannot assure you that we will be able to consummate any pending or future acquisitions or that we will realize any anticipated benefits from these
acquisitions. We may not be able to find suitable acquisition opportunities that are available at attractive valuations, if at all. Even if we do find suitable
acquisition opportunities, we may not be able to consummate the acquisitions on commercially acceptable terms, and any decline in the price of our common
stock may make it significantly more difficult and expensive to initiate or consummate additional acquisitions. We cannot assure you that we will be able to
implement or sustain our acquisition strategy or that our strategy will ultimately prove profitable.
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If goodwill or intangible assets become impaired, we may be required to record a significant charge to earnings.
The purchase price allocation for our historical acquisitions resulted in a material amount allocated to goodwill and intangible assets. In accordance with
GAAP, we review our intangible assets for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. We
review the fair values of our goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and test them for impairment annually or whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate an impairment may have occurred. Factors that may be considered a change in circumstances indicating that the carrying value of
our goodwill or intangible assets may not be recoverable include a decline in stock price and market capitalization, reduced future cash flow estimates, and
slower growth rates in our industry. We may be required to record a significant non-cash charge to earnings in our consolidated financial statements during
the period in which any impairment of our goodwill or intangible assets is determined, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations.
Significant negative industry or economic trends, including decreases in our market capitalization, slower growth rates or lack of growth in our business,
resulted in write-downs and impairment charges in fiscal 2008 and 2011. While no such write-downs or charges occurred in fiscal 2009 or fiscal 2010, if such
occur in the future it may indicate that additional impairment charges are required. If we are required to record additional impairment charges, this could have
a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements. In addition, the testing of goodwill for impairment requires us to make significant
estimates about the future performance and cash flows of our company, as well as other assumptions. These estimates can be affected by numerous factors,
including changes in economic, industry or market conditions, changes in underlying business operations, future reporting unit operating performance,
existing or new product market acceptance, changes in competition, or changes in technologies. Any changes in key assumptions, or actual performance
compared with those assumptions, about our business and future prospects or other assumptions could affect the fair value of one or more reporting units,
resulting in an impairment charge.
We may not be able to maintain profitability on a quarterly or annual basis.
Our ability to maintain profitability on a quarterly or annual basis given our planned business strategy depends upon a number of factors, including but
not limited to our ability to achieve and maintain vendor relationships, procure merchandise and fulfill orders in an efficient manner, leverage our fixed cost
structure, maintain adequate levels of vendor consideration and price protection, maintain a well-balanced product and customer mix, maintain customer
acquisition costs and shipping costs at acceptable levels, and our ability to effectively compete in the marketplace with our competitors. Our ability to
maintain profitability on a quarterly or annual basis will also depend on our ability to manage and control operating expenses and to generate and sustain
adequate levels of revenue. Many of our expenses are fixed in the short term, and we may not be able to quickly reduce spending if our revenue is lower than
what we project. In addition, we may find that our business plan costs more to execute than what we currently anticipate. We recently commenced initiatives
aimed at reducing our overhead expenses in connection with our efforts to streamline and unify our brand strategy. No assurance can be given that the cost
savings expected from these initiatives will have a lasting effect or will in fact result in the level of savings we anticipate. Some of the factors that affect our
ability to maintain profitability on a quarterly or annual basis are beyond our control, including general economic trends and uncertainties.
The effect of accounting rules for stock-based compensation may materially adversely affect our consolidated operating results, our stock price and our
ability to hire, retain and motivate employees.
We use employee stock options and other stock-based compensation to hire, retain and motivate certain of our employees. Current accounting
rules require us to measure compensation costs for all stock-based compensation (including stock options) at fair value as of the date of grant and to
recognize these costs as expenses in our consolidated statements of operations. The recognition of non-cash stock-based compensation expenses in our
consolidated statements of operations has had and will likely continue to have a negative effect on our consolidated operating results, including our net
income and earnings per share, which could negatively impact our stock price. Additionally, if we reduce or alter our use of stock-based compensation to
reduce these expenses and their impact, our ability to hire, motivate and retain certain employees could be adversely affected and we may need to increase
the cash compensation we pay to these employees.
Our operating results are difficult to predict and may adversely affect our stock price.
Our operating results have fluctuated in the past and are likely to vary significantly in the future based upon a number of factors, many of which we
cannot control. We operate in a highly dynamic industry and future results could be subject to significant fluctuations. These fluctuations could cause us to
fail to meet or exceed financial expectations of investors or analysts, which could cause our stock price to decline rapidly and significantly. Revenue and
expenses in future periods may be greater or less than revenue and expenses in the immediately preceding period or in the comparable period of the prior
year. Therefore, period-to-period comparisons of our operating results are not necessarily a good indication of our future performance. Some of the factors that
could cause our operating results to fluctuate include:
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the amount and timing of operating costs and capital expenditures relating to any expansion of our business operations and infrastructure;
price competition that results in lower sales volumes, lower profit margins, or net losses;
the availability of vendor programs, authorizations or certifications;
our ability to attract and retain key personnel and the related costs,
the amount and timing of advertising and marketing costs;
our ability to successfully integrate operations and technologies from any past or future acquisitions or other business combinations;
revisions or refinements of fair value estimates relating to acquisitions or other business combinations;
changes in the number of visitors to our websites or our inability to convert those visitors into customers;
technical difficulties, including system or Internet failures;
fluctuations in the demand for our products, services or solutions or overstocking or under-stocking of our products;
introduction of new or enhanced products, services or solutions by us or our competitors;
fluctuations in shipping costs, particularly during the holiday season;
changes in the amounts of information technology spending by our customers;
economic conditions;
foreign currency exchange rates;
changes in the mix of products, services or solutions that we sell;
fluctuations in levels of inventory theft, damage or obsolescence that we incur; and
fluctuations in mail-in rebate redemption rates.

If we fail to accurately predict our inventory risk, our gross margins may decline as a result of required inventory write downs due to lower prices
obtained from older or obsolete products.
We derive a significant amount of our gross sales from products sold out of inventory at our distribution facilities. We assume the inventory damage, theft
and obsolescence risks, as well as price erosion risks for products that are sold out of inventory stocked at our distribution facilities. These risks are especially
significant because many of the products we sell are characterized by rapid technological change, obsolescence and price erosion (e.g., computer hardware,
software and consumer electronics), and because our distribution facilities sometimes stock large quantities of particular types of inventory. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to identify and offer products necessary to remain competitive, maintain our gross margins, or avoid or minimize losses related
to excess and obsolete inventory. We currently have limited return rights with respect to products we purchase from Apple, HP and certain other vendors, but
these rights vary by product line, are subject to specified conditions and limitations, and can be terminated or changed at any time.
We may need additional financing and may not be able to raise additional financing on favorable terms or at all, which could increase our costs, limit
our ability to grow and dilute the ownership interests of existing stockholders.
We require substantial working capital to fund our business. We believe that our current working capital, including our existing cash balance, together
with our expected future cash flows from operations and available borrowing capacity under our existing credit facility, which functions as a working capital
line of credit, will be adequate to support our current operating plans for at least the next twelve months. However, if we need additional financing, such as
for acquisitions or expansion of our business or the businesses of our subsidiaries or to finance our operations during a significant downturn in sales or an
increase in operating expenses, there are no assurances that adequate financing will be available on acceptable terms, if at all. We may in the future seek
additional financing from public or private debt or equity financings to fund additional expansion, or take advantage of strategic opportunities or favorable
market conditions. There can be no assurance such financings will be available on terms favorable to us or at all. To the extent any such financings involve
the issuance of equity securities, existing stockholders could suffer dilution. If we raise additional financing through the issuance of equity, equity-related or
debt securities, those securities may have rights, preferences or privileges senior to those of the rights of our common stock and our stockholders will
experience dilution of their ownership interests. If additional financing is required but not available, we would have to implement further measures to
conserve cash and reduce costs. However, there is no assurance that such measures would be successful. Our failure to raise required additional financing
could adversely affect our ability to maintain, develop or enhance our product offerings, take advantage of future strategic opportunities, respond to
competitive pressures or continue operations.
Recently, there were substantial disruptions in the capital and credit markets related to the global economic environment. While we were recently able to
renew our credit facility on terms acceptable to us, economic volatility and geopolitical uncertainty could result in further disruptions of the capital and
credit markets. Problems in these areas could have a negative impact on our ability to obtain future financing if we need additional funds, such as for
acquisitions or expansion, to fund changes in our sales or an increase in our
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operating expenses, or to take advantage of strategic opportunities or favorable market conditions. We may seek additional financing from public or private
debt or equity issuances; however, there can be no assurance that such financing will be available at acceptable terms, if at all. Also, there can be no assurance
that the cost or availability of future borrowings, if any, under our credit facility or in the debt markets will not be impacted by disruptions in the capital and
credit markets.
Rising interest rates could negatively impact our results of operations and financial condition.
A significant portion of our working capital requirements has historically been funded through borrowings under our credit facility, which functions as a
working capital line of credit and bears interest at variable rates, tied to the LIBOR or prime rate. In connection with and as part of the line of credit, we also
entered into a term note, bearing interest at the same rate as our credit facility but which we currently expect to pay in full in the event our recently
announced sale of our retail building in Santa Monica closes in accordance with the terms of the related purchase and sale agreement. We have also entered
into financing arrangements with variable interest rates in connection with our acquisition of real property. If the variable interest rates on our borrowings
increase, we could incur greater interest expense than we have in the past. Rising interest rates, and our increased interest expense that would result from
them, could negatively impact our results of operations and financial condition.
We may be subject to claims regarding our intellectual property, including our business processes, or the products, services or solutions we sell, any of
which could result in expensive litigation, distract our management or force us to enter into costly royalty or licensing agreements.
Third parties have asserted, and may in the future assert, that our business or the technologies we use or sell infringe on their intellectual property rights.
As a result, we may be subject to intellectual property legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of our business. We cannot predict whether third
parties will assert additional claims of infringement against us in the future or whether any future claims will prevent us from offering popular products or
operating our business as planned. If we are forced to defend against any third-party infringement claims, whether they are with or without merit or are
determined in our favor, we could face expensive and time-consuming litigation, which could result in the imposition of a preliminary injunction preventing
us from continuing to operate our business as currently conducted throughout the duration of the litigation or distract our technical and management
personnel. If we are found to infringe, we may be required to pay monetary damages, which could include treble damages and attorneys’ fees for any
infringement that is found to be willful, and either be enjoined or required to pay ongoing royalties with respect to any technologies found to infringe.
Further, as a result of infringement claims either against us or against those who license technology to us, we may be required, or deem it advisable, to
develop non-infringing technology, which could be costly and time consuming, or enter into costly royalty or licensing agreements. Such royalty or
licensing agreements, if required, may be unavailable on terms that are acceptable to us, or at all. If a third party successfully asserts an infringement claim
against us and we are enjoined or required to pay monetary damages or royalties or we are unable to develop suitable non-infringing alternatives or license
the infringed or similar technology on reasonable terms on a timely basis, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially
harmed. Similarly, we may be required incur substantial monetary and diverted resource costs in order to protect our intellectual property rights against
infringement by others.
Furthermore, we sell products and solutions manufactured and distributed by third parties, some of which may be defective. If any product or solution that
we sell were to cause physical injury or damage to property, the injured party or parties could bring claims against us as the retailer of the product or solution.
Our insurance coverage may not be adequate to cover every claim that could be asserted. If a successful claim were brought against us in excess of our
insurance coverage, it could expose us to significant liability. Even unsuccessful claims could result in the expenditure of funds and management time and
could decrease our profitability.
Costs and other factors associated with pending or future litigation could materially harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.
From time to time we receive claims and become subject to litigation, including consumer protection, employment, intellectual property and other
litigation related to the conduct of our business. Additionally, we may from time to time institute legal proceedings against third parties to protect our
interests. Any litigation that we become a party to could be costly and time consuming and could divert our management and key personnel from our
business operations. In connection with any such litigation, we may be subject to significant damages or equitable remedies relating to the operation of our
business and could incur significant costs in asserting, defending, or settling any such litigation. We cannot determine with any certainty the costs or
outcome of pending or future litigation. Any such litigation may materially harm our business, results of operations or financial condition.
We may fail to expand our product, services and solutions categories and offerings or our websites or our processing systems in a cost-effective and
timely manner as may be required to efficiently operate our business.
We may be required to expand or change our product, services and solutions categories or offerings, our websites or our processing systems in order to
compete in our highly competitive and rapidly changing industry or to efficiently operate our business. Any failure on our part to expand or change the way
we do business in a cost-effective and timely manner in response to any such requirements would likely adversely affect our operating results, financial
condition or future prospects. Additionally, we cannot assure you that we will be successful in implementing any such changes when and if they are required.
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We have generated substantial portions of our revenue in the past from the sale of computer hardware, software and accessories and consumer electronics
products. Expansion into new product, service and solutions categories, including for example our efforts to grow our value-added services and solutions,
may require us to incur significant marketing expenses, develop relationships with new vendors and comply with new regulations. We may lack the necessary
expertise in a new category to realize the expected benefits of that new category. These requirements could strain our managerial, financial and operational
resources. Additional challenges that may affect our ability to expand into new product, service or solutions categories include our ability to:
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

establish or increase awareness of our new brands and product, service and solutions categories;
acquire, attract and retain customers at a reasonable cost;
achieve and maintain a critical mass of customers and orders across all of our product categories;
attract a sufficient number of new customers to whom any new categories and offerings are targeted;
successfully market our new categories or offerings to existing customers;
maintain or improve our gross margins and fulfillment costs;
attract and retain vendors to provide expanded lines of products, services or solutions to our customers on terms that are acceptable to us; and
manage our inventory in new product categories.

We cannot be certain that we will be able to successfully address any or all of these challenges in a manner that will enable us to expand our business into
new categories in a cost-effective or timely manner. If our new categories are not received favorably, or if our suppliers fail to meet our customers’
expectations, our results of operations would suffer and our reputation and the value of the applicable new brand and our other brands could be damaged. The
lack of market acceptance of our new categories or our inability to generate satisfactory revenue from any such expanded offerings to offset their cost could
harm our business, financial condition or results of operations.
We may not be able to attract and retain key personnel such as senior management, sales, services and solutions personnel or information technology
specialists.
Our future performance will depend to a significant extent upon the efforts and abilities of certain key management and other personnel, including Frank
F. Khulusi, our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, as well as other executive officers and senior management. The loss of service of one or
more of our key management members could have a material adverse effect on our business. Our success and plans for future growth will also depend in part
on our management’s continuing ability to hire, train and retain skilled personnel in all areas of our business such as sales, service and solutions personnel
and IT personnel. For example, our management information systems and processes require the services of employees with extensive knowledge of these
systems and processes and the business environment in which we operate, and in order to successfully implement and operate our systems and processes we
must be able to attract and retain a significant number of information technology specialists. We may not be able to attract, train and retain the skilled
personnel required to, among other things, implement, maintain, and operate our information systems and processes, and any failure to do so would likely
have a material adverse effect on our operations.
If we fail to achieve and maintain adequate internal controls, we may not be able to produce reliable financial reports in a timely manner or prevent
financial fraud.
We monitor and periodically test our internal control procedures. We may from time to time identify deficiencies which we may not be able to remediate
in a timely or cost-effective manner. In addition, if we fail to achieve and maintain the adequacy of our internal controls, we may not be able to ensure that we
can conclude on an ongoing basis that we have effective internal controls over financial reporting. Effective internal controls, particularly those related to
revenue recognition, are necessary for us to produce reliable financial reports and are important in helping prevent financial fraud. If we cannot provide
reliable financial reports on a timely basis or prevent financial fraud, our business and operating results could be harmed, investors could lose confidence in
our reported financial information, and the trading price of our stock could drop significantly.
Any inability to effectively manage our growth may prevent us from successfully expanding our business.
The growth of our business has required us to make significant additions in personnel and has significantly increased our working capital requirements.
Although we have experienced significant sales growth in the past, such growth should not be considered indicative of future sales growth. Such growth has
resulted in new and increased responsibilities for our management personnel and has placed and continues to place significant strain upon our management,
operating and financial systems, and other resources. Any
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future growth, whether organic or through acquisition, may result in increased strain. There can be no assurance that current or future strain will not have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations, nor can there be any assurance that we will be able to attract or retain
sufficient personnel to continue the expansion of our operations. Also crucial to our success in managing our growth will be our ability to achieve additional
economies of scale. We cannot assure you that we will be able to achieve such economies of scale, and the failure to do so could have a material adverse
effect upon our business, financial condition or results of operations.
Our advertising and marketing efforts may be costly and may not achieve desired results.
We incur substantial expense in connection with our advertising and marketing efforts. Although we target our advertising and marketing efforts on
current and potential customers who we believe are likely to be in the market for the products we sell, we cannot assure you that our advertising and
marketing efforts will achieve our desired results. In 2012, we expect to begin the process of unifying our commercial brands. While we believe this
unification will lead to an improved customer experience, operational synergies and benefits to all of our stakeholders, we are unable to quantify any
synergies or expected costs related to our rebranding strategy. In addition, we periodically adjust our advertising expenditures in an effort to optimize the
return on such expenditures. Any decrease in the level of our advertising expenditures which may be made to optimize such return could adversely affect our
sales.
We are exposed to the credit risk of some of our customers and to credit exposures in weakened markets, which could negatively impact our business,
operating results and financial condition.
Business customers who qualify are provided credit terms and while we monitor individual customer payment capability and maintain reserves we believe
are adequate to cover exposure for doubtful accounts, we have exposure to credit risk in the event that customers fail to meet their payment obligations.
Additionally, to the degree that the ongoing tightness in the credit markets makes it more difficult for some customers to obtain financing, those customers’
ability to meet their payment obligations to us could be adversely impacted, which in turn could have a material adverse impact on our business, operating
results, and financial condition.
Increased product returns or a failure to accurately predict product returns could decrease our revenue and impact profitability.
We make allowances for product returns in our consolidated financial statements based on historical return rates. We are responsible for returns of certain
products ordered through our catalogs and websites from our distribution center, as well as products that are shipped to our customers directly from our
vendors. If our actual product returns significantly exceed our allowances for returns, our revenue and profitability could decrease. In addition, because our
allowances are based on historical return rates, the introduction of new merchandise categories, new products, changes in our product mix, or other factors
may cause actual returns to exceed return allowances, perhaps significantly. In addition, any policies that we adopt that are intended to reduce the number of
product returns may result in customer dissatisfaction and fewer repeat customers.
Our business may be harmed by fraudulent activities on our websites, including fraudulent credit card transactions.
We have received in the past, and anticipate that we will receive in the future, communications from customers due to purported fraudulent activities on
our websites, including fraudulent credit card transactions. Negative publicity generated as a result of fraudulent conduct by third parties could damage our
reputation and diminish the value of our brand name. Fraudulent activities on our websites could also subject us to losses and could lead to scrutiny from
lawmakers and regulators regarding the operation of our websites. We expect to continue to receive requests from customers for reimbursement due to
purportedly fraudulent activities or threats of legal action against us if no reimbursement is made.
We may be liable for misappropriation of our customers’ personal information.
If third parties or our employees are able to penetrate our network security or otherwise misappropriate our customers’ personal information or credit card
information, or such information for which our customers may be responsible and for which we agree to be responsible in connection with service contracts
we may enter, or if we give third parties or our employees improper access to any such personal information or credit card information, we could be subject to
liability. This liability could include claims for unauthorized purchases with credit card information, identity theft or other similar fraud-related claims. This
liability could also include claims for other misuses of personal information, including for unauthorized marketing purposes. Other liability could include
claims alleging misrepresentation or our privacy and data security practices. Any such liability for misappropriation of this information could decrease our
profitability. In addition, the Federal Trade Commission and state agencies have been investigating various Internet companies regarding whether they
misused or inadequately secured personal information regarding consumers. We could incur additional expenses if new laws or regulations regarding the use
of personal information are introduced or if government agencies investigate our privacy practices.
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We seek to rely on encryption and authentication technology licensed from third parties to provide the security and authentication necessary to effect
secure online transmission of confidential information such as customer credit card numbers. Advances in computer capabilities, new discoveries in the field
of cryptography or other events or developments may result in a compromise or breach of the algorithms that we use to protect sensitive customer transaction
data. A party who is able to circumvent our security measures could misappropriate proprietary information or cause interruptions in our operations. We may
be required to expend significant capital and other resources to protect against such security breaches or to alleviate problems caused by such breaches. Our
security measures are designed to protect against security breaches, but our failure to prevent such security breaches could cause us to incur significant
expense to investigate and respond to a security breach and correct any problems caused by any breach, subject us to liability, damage our reputation and
diminish the value of our brand-name.
Laws or regulations relating to privacy and data protection may adversely affect the growth of our Internet business or our marketing efforts.
We mail catalogs and send electronic messages to names in our proprietary customer database and to potential customers whose names we obtain from
rented or exchanged mailing lists. Worldwide public concern regarding personal privacy has subjected the rental and use of customer mailing lists and other
customer information to increased scrutiny and regulation. As a result, we are subject to increasing regulation relating to privacy and the use of personal
information. For example, we are subject to various telemarketing and anti-spam laws that regulate the manner in which we may solicit future suppliers and
customers. Such regulations, along with increased governmental or private enforcement, may increase the cost of operating and growing our business. In
addition, several states have proposed legislation that would limit the uses of personal information gathered online or require online services to establish
privacy policies. The Federal Trade Commission has adopted regulations regarding the collection and use of personal identifying information obtained from
children under 13 years of age. Bills proposed in Congress would expand online privacy protections already provided to adults. Moreover, both in the United
States and elsewhere, laws and regulations are becoming increasingly protective of consumer privacy, with a trend toward requiring companies to establish
procedures to notify users of privacy and security policies, to obtain consent from users for collection and use of personal information, and to provide users
with the ability to access, correct and delete personal information stored by companies. Such privacy and data protection laws and regulations, and efforts to
enforce such laws and regulations, may restrict our ability to collect, use or transfer demographic and personal information from users, which could be costly
or harm our marketing efforts. Further, any violation of domestic or foreign privacy or data protection laws and regulations, including the national do-not-call
list, may subject us to fines, penalties and damages, which could decrease our revenue and profitability.
The security risks of eCommerce may discourage customers from purchasing products, services or solutions from us.
In order for the eCommerce market to be successful, we and other market participants must be able to transmit confidential information securely over
public networks. Third parties may have the technology or know-how to breach the security of customer transaction data. Any breach could cause customers
to lose confidence in the security of our websites and choose not to purchase from our websites. If someone is able to circumvent our security measures, he or
she could destroy or steal valuable information or disrupt our operations. Concerns about the security and privacy of transactions over the Internet could
inhibit the growth of Internet usage and eCommerce. Our security measures may not effectively prohibit others from obtaining improper access to our
information. Any security breach could expose us to risks of loss, litigation and liability and could seriously damage our reputation, disrupt our operations
and require the devotion of significant management, financial and other resources to remedy the breach and comply with applicable notice and other legal
requirements in connection therewith.
Credit card fraud could decrease our revenue and profitability.
We do not carry insurance against the risk of credit card fraud, so the failure to adequately control fraudulent credit card transactions could reduce our
revenues or increase our operating costs. We may in the future suffer losses as a result of orders placed with fraudulent credit card data even though the
associated financial institution approved payment of the orders. Under current credit card practices, we may be liable for fraudulent credit card transactions. If
we are unable to detect or control credit card fraud, or if credit card companies require more burdensome terms or refuse to accept credit card charges from us,
our revenue and profitability could decrease.
Our facilities and systems are vulnerable to natural disasters or other catastrophic events.
Our headquarters, customer service center and a part of our infrastructure, including computer servers, are located near Los Angeles, California and in
other areas that are susceptible to earthquakes, floods, severe weather and other natural disasters. Our distribution facilities, which are located in Memphis,
Tennessee, Irvine, California and Lewis Center, Ohio, house the product inventory from which a substantial majority of our orders are shipped, and are also in
areas that are susceptible to natural disasters and extreme weather conditions such as earthquakes, fire, floods and major storms. Our operations in the
Philippines are also in an area
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that is periodically subject to extreme weather. A natural disaster or other catastrophic event, such as an earthquake, fire, flood, severe storm, break-in,
terrorist attack or other comparable events in the areas in which we operate could cause interruptions or delays in our business and loss of data or render us
unable to accept and fulfill customer orders in a timely manner, or at all. Our systems, including our management information systems, websites and
telephone system, are not fully redundant, and we do not have redundant geographic locations or earthquake insurance. Further, California periodically
experiences power outages as a result of insufficient electricity supplies. These outages may recur in the future and could disrupt our operations. We currently
are in process of developing a formal disaster recovery plan and certain of our subsidiaries have geographical redundancies for web and critical information
systems. Our business interruption insurance may not adequately compensate us for losses that may occur.
We rely on independent shipping companies to deliver the products we sell.
We rely upon third party carriers, especially FedEx and UPS, for timely delivery of our product shipments. As a result, we are subject to carrier disruptions
and increased costs due to factors that are beyond our control, including employee strikes, inclement weather and increased fuel costs. Any failure to deliver
products to our customers in a timely and accurate manner may damage our reputation and brand and could cause us to lose customers. We do not have a
written long-term agreement with any of these third party carriers, and we cannot be sure that these relationships will continue on terms favorable to us, if at
all. If our relationship with any of these third party carriers is terminated or impaired, or if any of these third parties are unable to deliver products for us, we
would be required to use alternative carriers for the shipment of products to our customers. We may be unable to engage alternative carriers on a timely basis
or on terms favorable to us, if at all. Potential adverse consequences include:
·
·
·
·

reduced visibility of order status and package tracking;
delays in order processing and product delivery;
increased cost of delivery, resulting in reduced margins; and
reduced shipment quality, which may result in damaged products and customer dissatisfaction.

Furthermore, shipping costs represent a significant operational expense for us. Any future increases in shipping rates could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
We may not be able to compete successfully against existing or future competitors, which include some of our largest vendors.
The business of direct marketing of the products, services and solutions we sell is highly competitive and driven in large part by price, product, service
and solutions availability, speed and accuracy of delivery and performance, effectiveness of sales and marketing programs, credit availability, ability to tailor
specific solutions to customer needs, quality and breadth of product lines and services, availability of talented sales and service personnel and the
availability of technical information. We compete with other direct marketers, including CDW, Insight Enterprises and PC Connection. In addition, we
compete with large value added resellers such as CompuCom Systems and World Wide Technology, and computer retail stores and resellers, including
superstores such as Best Buy and Staples, certain hardware and software vendors such as Apple and Dell Computer that sell or are increasing sales directly to
end users, online resellers such as Amazon.com, Newegg.com and TigerDirect.com, government resellers such as GTSI, CDWG and GovConnection, software
focused resellers such as Soft Choice and Software House International and other direct marketers and value added resellers of hardware, software and
computer-related and electronic products. Our daily deals offerings compete with larger market participants such as Groupon and LivingSocial. In the direct
marketing, daily deal and Internet retail industries, barriers to entry are relatively low and the risk of new competitors entering the market is high. Certain of
our existing competitors have substantially greater financial resources than we have. There can be no assurance that we will be able to continue to compete
effectively against existing competitors, consolidations of competitors or new competitors that may enter the market.
Furthermore, the manner in which our products, services and solutions are distributed and sold is changing, and new methods of sale and distribution have
emerged and serve an increasingly large portion of the market. Computer hardware and software OEM vendors have sold, and may intensify their efforts to
sell, their products directly to end users. From time to time, certain OEM vendors, including Apple and HP, have instituted programs for the direct sale of
large quantities of hardware and software to certain large business accounts. These types of programs may continue to be developed and used by various
OEM vendors. Software publishers also may attempt to increase the volume of software products distributed electronically directly to end users’ personal
computers. Any of these competitive programs, if successful, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.
Our success is tied to the continued use of the Internet and the adequacy of the Internet infrastructure.
The level of sales generated from our websites, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of our net sales, continues to be material to our operating
results. Our Internet sales are dependent upon customers continuing to use the Internet in addition to traditional means of commerce to purchase products and
services. Widespread use of the Internet could decline as a result of disruptions, computer viruses, data security threats, privacy issues or other damage to
Internet servers or users’ computers. If consumer use of the Internet to purchase products, services or solutions declines in any significant way, our business,
financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected.
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The success of our Canadian call center is dependent, in part, on our receipt of government labor credits.
We maintain a Canadian call center serving the U.S. market, which has historically received the benefit of labor credits under a Canadian government
program. In 2007, we received an eligibility certificate to participate in the Investment Quebec Refundable Tax Credit for Major Employment Generating
Projects (GPCE), replacing the prior government subsidy program which ended at the end of 2007. In addition to other eligibility requirements under the
replacement program, which extends through fiscal year 2016, we will be required to maintain a minimum of 317 eligible employees employed by our
subsidiary PC Mall Canada, Inc. in the province of Quebec at all times to remain eligible to apply annually for these labor credits. The success of our
Canadian call center is dependent, in part, on our receipt of the government labor credits we expect to receive. If we do not receive these expected labor
credits, or a sufficient portion of them, the costs of operating our Canadian call center may exceed the benefits it provides us and our operating results would
likely suffer.
We are exposed to the risks of business and other conditions in the Asia Pacific region.
All or portions of certain of the products we sell are produced, or have major components produced, in the Asia Pacific region. We engage in U.S. dollar
denominated transactions with U.S. divisions and subsidiaries of companies located in that region as well. As a result, we may be indirectly affected by risks
associated with international events, including economic and labor conditions, political instability, tariffs and taxes, availability of products, natural
disasters and currency fluctuations in the U.S. dollar versus the regional currencies. In the past, countries in the Asia Pacific region have experienced
volatility in their currency, banking and equity markets. Future volatility could adversely affect the supply and price of the products we sell and their
components and ultimately, our results of operations.
We maintain an office in the Philippines and we may increase these and other offshore operations in the future. Establishing offshore operations may
entail considerable expense before we realize cost savings, if any, from these initiatives. Our limited operating history in the Philippines, as well as the risks
associated with doing business overseas and international events, could prevent us from realizing the expected benefits from our Philippines operations or
any other offshore operations that we establish.
The increasing significance of our foreign operations exposes us to risks that are beyond our control and could affect our ability to operate successfully.
In order to enhance the cost-effectiveness of our operations, we have increasingly sought to shift portions of our operations to jurisdictions with lower
cost structures than that available in the United States. The transition of even a portion of our business operations to new facilities in a foreign country
involves a number of logistical and technical challenges that could result in operational interruptions, which could reduce our revenues and adversely affect
our business. We may encounter complications associated with the set-up, migration and operation of business systems and equipment in a new facility. This
could result in disruptions that could damage our reputation and otherwise adversely affect our business and results of operations.
To the extent that we shift any operations or labor offshore to jurisdictions with lower cost structures, we may experience challenges in effectively
managing those operations as a result of several factors, including time zone differences and regulatory, legal, cultural and logistical issues. Additionally, the
relocation of labor resources may have a negative impact on our existing employees, which could negatively impact our operations. If we are unable to
effectively manage our offshore personnel and any other offshore operations, our business and results of operations could be adversely affected.
We cannot be certain that any shifts in our operations to offshore jurisdictions will ultimately produce the expected cost savings. We cannot predict the
extent of government support, availability of qualified workers, future labor rates, or monetary and economic conditions in any offshore locations where we
may operate. Although some of these factors may influence our decision to establish or increase our offshore operations, there are inherent risks beyond our
control, including:
·
·
·
·
·

political unrest or uncertainties;
wage inflation;
exposure to foreign currency fluctuations;
tariffs and other trade barriers; and
foreign regulatory restrictions and unexpected changes in regulatory environments.

We will likely be faced with competition in these offshore markets for qualified personnel, and we expect this competition to increase as other companies
expand their operations offshore. If the supply of such qualified personnel becomes limited due to increased competition or otherwise, it could increase our
costs and employee turnover rates. One or more of these factors or other factors relating to foreign operations could result in increased operating expenses and
make it more difficult for us to manage our costs and operations, which could cause our operating results to decline and result in reduced revenues.
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International operations expose us to currency exchange risk and we cannot predict the effect of future exchange rate fluctuations on our business and
operating results.
We have operation centers in Canada and the Philippines that provide back-office administrative support and customer service support. Our international
operations are sensitive to currency exchange risks. We have currency exposure arising from both sales and purchases denominated in foreign currencies, as
well as intercompany transactions. Significant changes in exchange rates between foreign currencies in which we transact business and the U.S. dollar may
adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition. Historically, we have not entered into any hedging activities, and, to the extent that we
continue not to do so in the future, we may be vulnerable to the effects of currency exchange-rate fluctuations.
In addition, our international operations also expose us to currency fluctuations as we translate the financial statements of our foreign operations to the
U.S. dollar. Although the effect of currency fluctuations on our financial statements has not generally been material in the past, there can be no guarantee that
the effect of currency fluctuations will not be material in the future.
We are subject to risks associated with consolidation within our industry.
Many technology resellers are consolidating operations and acquiring or merging with other resellers, direct marketers and providers of information
technology solutions to achieve economies of scale, expanded product and service offerings, and increased efficiency. The current industry reconfiguration
and the trend towards consolidation could cause the industry to become even more competitive, further increase pricing pressures and make it more difficult
for us to maintain our operating margins or to increase or maintain the same level of net sales or gross profit. Declining prices, resulting in part from
technological changes, may require us to sell a greater number of products, services or solutions to achieve the same level of net sales and gross profit. Such a
trend could make it more difficult for us to continue to increase our net sales and earnings growth. In addition, growth in the information technology market
has slowed. If the growth rate of the information technology market were to further decrease, our business, financial condition and operating results could be
materially adversely affected.
If we are unable to provide satisfactory customer service, we could lose customers or fail to attract new customers.
Our ability to provide satisfactory levels of customer service depends, to a large degree, on the efficient and uninterrupted operation of our customer
service operations. Any material disruption or slowdown in our order processing systems resulting from labor disputes, telephone or Internet failures,
upgrading our management information systems, power or service outages, natural disasters or other events could make it difficult or impossible to provide
adequate customer service and support. Furthermore, we may be unable to attract and retain adequate numbers of competent customer service representatives
and relationship managers for our business customers, each of which is essential in creating a favorable interactive customer experience. If we are unable to
continually provide adequate staffing and training for our customer service operations, our reputation could be seriously harmed and we could lose customers
or fail to attract new customers. In addition, if our e-mail and telephone call volumes exceed our present system capacities, we could experience delays in
placing orders, responding to customer inquiries and addressing customer concerns. Because our success depends largely on keeping our customers satisfied,
any failure to provide high levels of customer service would likely impair our reputation and decrease our revenues.
Our stock price may be volatile.
We believe that certain factors, such as sales of our common stock into the market by existing stockholders, fluctuations in our quarterly operating results,
changes in market conditions affecting stocks of computer hardware and software manufacturers and resellers generally and companies in the Internet and
eCommerce industries in particular, could cause the market price of our common stock to fluctuate substantially. Other factors that could affect our stock
price include, but are not limited to, the following:
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

failure to meet investors’ expectations regarding our operating performance;
changes in securities analysts’ recommendations or estimates of our financial performance;
publication of research reports by analysts;
changes in market valuations of similar companies;
announcements by us or our competitors of significant contracts, acquisitions, commercial relationships, joint ventures or capital commitments;
actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results;
litigation developments; and
general economic and market conditions or other economic factors unrelated to our performance, including disruptions in the capital and credit
markets.
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The stock market in general, and the stocks of computer and software resellers, and companies in the Internet and electronic commerce industries in
particular, and other technology or related stocks, have in the past experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations which have been unrelated to
corporate operating performance. Such market volatility may adversely affect the market price of our common stock. In the past, following periods of
volatility in the market price of a public company’s securities, securities class action litigation has often been instituted against that company. Such
litigation, if asserted against us, could result in substantial costs to us and cause a likely diversion of our management’s attention from the operations of our
company.
***
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
Exhibit
Number

Description

10.1*

PC Mall, Inc. 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Appendix A to the Definitive Proxy Statement on
Schedule 14A for the Company’s 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (File No. 0-25790) filed with the Commission on April 30,
2012)

10.2*

Form of Grant Notice and Option Agreement under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan

10.3

Amendment to Agreement of Purchase and Sale Agreement and Joint Escrow Instructions, dated June 26, 2012

31.1

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of the Registrant pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a)

31.2

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of the Registrant pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a)

32.1

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of Registrant furnished pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted by Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of Registrant furnished pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted by Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS**

XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH**

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL**

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF**

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB**

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE**

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

* Management contract, or compensatory plan or arrangement.
**Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, these interactive data files are deemed not filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of
Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 or Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and otherwise are not subject to liability under those
sections.
***
46

Table of Contents
PC MALL, INC.
SIGNATURE
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
PC MALL, INC.
(Registrant)
Date: August 9, 2012

By:
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/s/ Brandon H. LaVerne
Brandon H. LaVerne
Chief Financial Officer
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PC MALL, INC.
EXHIBIT LIST
Exhibit
Number

Description

10.2*

Form of Grant Notice and Option Agreement under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan

10.3

Amendment to Agreement of Purchase and Sale Agreement and Joint Escrow Instructions, dated June 26, 2012

31.1

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of the Registrant pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a)

31.2

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of the Registrant pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a)

32.1

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of Registrant furnished pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted by Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of Registrant furnished pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted by Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS**

XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH**

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL**

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF**

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB**

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE**

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

* Management contract, or compensatory plan or arrangement.
**Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, these interactive data files are deemed not filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of
Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 or Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and otherwise are not subject to liability under those
sections.
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EXHIBIT 10.2
PC MALL, INC.
2012 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
NOTICE OF GRANT OF STOCK OPTION
Pursuant to its 2012 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended from time to time (the “Plan”), PC Mall, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”),
hereby grants to the Optionee listed below (“Optionee”), an option (the “Option”) to purchase the number of shares (“Shares”) of the Company’s Common
Stock set forth below, subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and the Stock Option Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Option
Agreement”), each of which is incorporated herein by reference. Capitalized terms not explicitly defined in herein shall have the same definitions as in the
Plan and the Option Agreement.
Optionee:
Date of Grant:
Option Price per Share:

$

Total Number of Shares Granted:
Expiration Date:

The day before the seventh anniversary of the Date of Grant

Tax Status of Option:

o Nonqualified Stock Option
o Incentive Stock Option

Vesting Schedule:

Subject to the terms set forth in the Plan and the Option Agreement, the Shares covered by the Option
shall vest in equal [monthly/quarterly/annually] installments commencing on the Date of Grant, with
the Option 100% vested on the [
] anniversary of the Date of Grant.

Acceleration on Change in Control:

[FULL ACCELERATION:]
[Notwithstanding the foregoing vesting schedule, in the event that a Change in Control occurs during the
term of the Option, any then-unvested portion of the Option shall become fully vested and exercisable
immediately prior to the consummation of a Change in Control.]
[FULL ACCELERATION — DOUBLE TRIGGER:]
[Notwithstanding the foregoing vesting schedule, in the event that (a) a Change in Control occurs during
the term of the Option, (b) the Option remains outstanding following such Change in Control and (c) on
or within twelve (12) months following the date of the Change in Control, Optionee’s continuous service
with the Company or any Subsidiary is involuntarily terminated by the Company or a Subsidiary, as
applicable, without Cause or is voluntarily terminated by Optionee for Good Reason, then 100% of any
then-unvested Shares covered by the Option shall become vested and exercisable immediately prior to
the date of such termination.]

[PARTIAL ACCELERATION — DOUBLE TRIGGER:]
[Notwithstanding the foregoing vesting schedule, in the event that (a) a Change in Control occurs during
the term of the Option, (b) the Option remains outstanding following such Change in Control and (c) on
or within twelve (12) months following the date of the Change in Control, Optionee’s continuous service
with the Company or any Subsidiary is involuntarily terminated by the Company or a Subsidiary, as
applicable, without Cause or is voluntarily terminated by Optionee for Good Reason, then immediately
prior to Optionee’s termination date the Option shall become vested and exercisable with respect to a
number of then-unvested Shares that otherwise would have vested pursuant to the Option if Optionee’s
continuous service with the Company or Subsidiary, as applicable, had continued for a period of [ ]
calendar months immediately following Optionee’s termination date.]
The Company and Optionee agree that the Option and the Shares that may be acquired upon exercise of the Option are governed by this Notice of
Grant of Stock Option and by the provisions of the Plan and the Option Agreement, each of which are made a part of this document. Optionee acknowledges
receipt of copies of the Plan and the Option Agreement, represents that Optionee has read and is familiar with their terms and provisions, and hereby accepts
the Option subject to all of their terms and conditions.
PC MALL, INC.

OPTIONEE

By:
(Signature)
Name:
(Print Name)
Title:

Address:
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EXHIBIT A
PC MALL, INC. 2012 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
PC Mall, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), has granted to the Optionee named in the Notice of Grant of Stock Option (the “Grant
Notice”) to which this Stock Option Agreement (this “Option Agreement”) is attached an option (the “Option”) to purchase certain shares (“Shares”) of the
Company’s Common Stock upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Grant Notice and this Option Agreement. The Option has been granted pursuant to
and shall in all respects be subject to the terms and conditions of the PC Mall, Inc. 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), as amended from time to time,
the provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof. In the event of any inconsistency between the Plan and this Option
Agreement, the terms of the Plan shall control.
1.
Definitions. Capitalized terms not explicitly defined in this Option Agreement shall have the same definitions as in the Plan and the Grant
Notice. In addition, for purposes of this Option Agreement and the Grant Notice:
(a)
“Cause” means, except as defined otherwise in any agreement between Optionee and the Company or any Subsidiary (any which
definition shall govern for purposes of this Option Agreement), (i) Optionee engages in a material act of misconduct, including but not limited to
misappropriation of trade secrets, fraud, or embezzlement; (ii) Optionee commits a crime involving dishonesty, breach of trust, or physical harm to any
person; (iii) Optionee breaches a material term of any agreement between Optionee and the Company or any Subsidiary; (iv) Optionee refuses to implement
or follow a lawful policy or directive of the Company; (v) Optionee engages in misfeasance or malfeasance demonstrated by Optionee’s failure to perform
Optionee’s job duties diligently and/or professionally; or (vi) Optionee violates a Company policy or procedure which is materially injurious to the
Company, including violation of the Company’s policy concerning sexual harassment, discrimination or retaliation.
(b)
“Disability” means Optionee is unable to engage in any substantial gainful activity for the Company and/or its Subsidiaries by
reason of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or which has lasted or can be expected to last
for a continuous period of not less than twelve (12) months. Optionee shall not be considered to be disabled unless Optionee furnishes proof of the existence
thereof, in such form and manner, and at such times, as the Board may require.
(c)
“Good Reason” means Optionee’s voluntary termination of Optionee’s continuous service with the Company or any Subsidiary, as
applicable, as a result of (x) an aggregate reduction of 10% or more in Optionee’s then-current base salary and target annual bonus or (y) a relocation of
Optionee’s then-current principal place of employment by more than thirty-five (35) miles, in each case without Optionee’s prior written consent; provided,
however, that “Good Reason” shall not exist unless (i) Optionee provides written notice to the Company of the condition that could constitute a “Good
Reason” event within sixty (60) days of the initial existence of such condition and (ii) the Company fails to remedy such condition within thirty (30) days of
receiving such written notice.
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2.

Tax Status of Option. The Option is intended to have the tax status designated in the Grant Notice.

(a)
Nonqualified Stock Option. Unless the Grant Notice expressly designates this Option as Incentive Stock Option, the Option is
intended to be a nonqualified stock option and shall not be treated as an Incentive Stock Option.
(b)
Incentive Stock Option. If the Grant Notice so designates, the Option is intended to be an Incentive Stock Option, but the
Company does not represent or warrant that the Option qualifies as such. Optionee should consult with Optionee’s own tax advisor regarding the tax effects
of the Option and the requirements necessary to obtain favorable income tax treatment under Section 422 of the Code, including, but not limited to, holding
period requirements. If the Option is exercised more than three (3) months after the date on which Optionee ceases to be an employee of the Company or any
Subsidiary (other than by reason of Optionee’s death or permanent and total disability as defined in Section 22(e)(3) of the Code), the Option will be treated
as a nonqualified stock option and not as an Incentive Stock Option to the extent required by Section 422 of the Code.
If the Grant Notice designates this Option as an Incentive Stock Option, then to the extent that the Option (together with all Incentive Stock Options
granted to Optionee under all stock option plans of the Company, including the Plan) becomes exercisable for the first time during any calendar year for
shares having a fair market value greater than one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000), the portion of such options which exceeds such amount will be
treated as nonqualified stock options as determined in accordance with Section 422 of the Code.
3.
Vesting. The Option shall vest and become exercisable in accordance with the vesting schedule set forth in the Grant Notice. Any portion
of the Option not exercised when vested shall accumulate and be exercisable at any time during the term of the Option prior to the applicable termination
date set forth in Section 4 below. No partial exercise of the Option may be for less than five percent (5%) of the total number of Shares then available under
the Option. In no event shall the Company be required to issue fractional Shares. No portion of the Option that remains unvested on the date upon which
Optionee’s continuous service with the Company or any Subsidiary terminates for any reason, including by reason of death or Disability (as such term is
defined below), shall vest after the date of such termination, except as may be otherwise provided by the Board or as set forth in a written agreement between
the Company and Optionee.
4.
Term. The Option shall be exercisable only during its term. The term of the Option commences on the Date of Grant and expires upon the
earliest of the following:
(a)
90 days after the termination of Optionee’s continuous service with the Company or any Subsidiary for any reason other than
Cause, death or Disability;
(b)

immediately upon termination of Optionee’s continuous service with the Company or any Subsidiary for Cause;
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(c)

twelve (12) months after the termination of Optionee’s continuous service due to Optionee’s Disability;

(d)

twelve (12) months after Optionee’s death if Optionee dies during Optionee’s continuous service; or

(e)

the Expiration Date set forth in the Grant Notice.

5.
Method of Exercise. To the extent then exercisable, Optionee may exercise all or any portion of the Option by providing notice of exercise
to the Company in such form as may be designated by the Company from time to time, accompanied by payment of the Option Price and any associated tax
withholding amounts that are due in connection with Optionee’s exercise of all or any part of the Option. The Company shall not be required to deliver
Common Stock pursuant to the exercise of the Option until payment of the full Option Price and any associated tax withholding amounts are received by the
Company. Optionee may elect to make payment of the Option Price by any of the following:
(a)

cash or by check acceptable to the Company or by wire transfer of immediately available funds in United States dollars;

(b)
a cashless exercise program that the Board may approve, from time to time in its discretion (including a “cashless exercise”
program developed under Regulation T as promulgated by the Federal Reserve Board), pursuant to which Optionee may concurrently provide irrevocable
instructions (i) to Optionee’s broker or dealer to effect the immediate sale of the purchased Shares and remit to the Company, out of the sale proceeds
available on the settlement date, sufficient funds to cover the aggregate Option Price plus all applicable taxes required to be withheld by the Company by
reason of such exercise, and (ii) to the Company to deliver the certificates for the purchased Shares directly to such broker or dealer in order to complete the
sale;
(c)
subject to any procedures that the Board may approve from time to time, delivery of shares of Common Stock that (i) are owned by
Optionee, (ii) have a fair market value on the date of surrender equal to the aggregate Option Price for the portion of the Option that is being exercised,
(iii) were not acquired by Optionee pursuant to the exercise of a stock option, unless such shares have been owned by Optionee for at least six months or such
other period as the Board may determine, (iv) are all, at the time of such surrender, free and clear of any and all claims, pledges, liens and encumbrances, or
any restrictions which would in any manner restrict the transfer of such shares to or by the Company (other than such restrictions as may have existed prior to
an issuance of such Common Stock by the Company to Optionee), and (v) are duly endorsed for transfer to the Company; or
(d)

by a combination of the foregoing.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 5, the Board reserves, at any and all times, the right, in the Board’s sole and absolute
discretion, to establish, decline to approve or terminate any program or procedure providing for payment of the Option Price through any of the means
described in clauses (b)-(d) above of this Section 5, including with respect to Optionee notwithstanding that such program or procedures may be available to
others.
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6.
Conditions to Issuance of Stock Certificates. The Shares deliverable upon the exercise of the Option, or any portion thereof, may be either
shares of original issuance or treasury shares or a combination of the foregoing. Such Shares shall be fully paid and nonassessable. The Company shall not be
required to issue or deliver any Shares purchased upon the exercise of the Option or portion thereof prior to fulfillment of all of the following conditions (in
addition to the other conditions set forth herein):
(a)

The admission of such Shares to listing on all stock exchanges on which the Company’s Common Stock is then listed;

(b)
The completion of any registration or other qualification of such Shares under any state or federal law or under rulings or
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission or of any other governmental regulatory body, which the Board shall, in its absolute discretion, deem
necessary or advisable;
(c)
The obtaining of any approval or other clearance from any state or federal governmental agency which the Board shall, in its
absolute discretion, determine to be necessary or advisable;
(d)
The lapse of such reasonable period of time following the exercise of the Option as the Board may from time to time establish for
reasons of administrative convenience.
7.
Transferability. The Option is not transferable, except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution, and is exercisable during
Optionee’s life only by Optionee; provided that any successor or transferee of Optionee shall not be entitled to further transfer the Option and any Shares
acquired upon exercise of the Option shall be subject to the restrictions set forth herein and in the Plan. In the event of any attempt by Optionee to alienate,
assign, pledge, hypothecate, or otherwise dispose of the Option, or of any right hereunder, except as provided for in this Option Agreement, or in the event of
the levy of any attachment, execution, or similar process upon the rights or interest hereby conferred, the Company, at its election, may terminate the Option
by notice to Optionee and the Option shall thereupon become null and void.
8.
Adjustments. The Option may be adjusted or terminated in any manner as contemplated by the Plan (including Section 12 therein) or this
Option Agreement. In the event of a Spinoff Transaction, the Board shall not be obligated to make any adjustments to the Option or take any other actions
permitted by Section 12 of the Plan with respect to the Option that would otherwise be permitted in connection with such Spinoff Transaction.
9.
No Employment Rights. None of the Plan, the Grant Notice or this Option Agreement are employment or service contracts, and none of
them will be deemed to create in any way whatsoever any obligation on Optionee’s part to continue in the employ of the Company or a Subsidiary, or of the
Company or a Subsidiary to continue Optionee’s employment. In addition, nothing herein shall obligate the Company or a Subsidiary to continue any
relationship that Optionee might have as a non-employee director or Consultant for the Company or a Subsidiary.
10.
No Stockholder Rights. Optionee shall not have any stockholder rights with respect to the Common Stock subject to the Option until
Optionee have exercised the Option.
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11.

Withholding Obligations.

(a)
At the time Optionee exercises the Option, in whole or in part, or at any time thereafter as requested by the Company, Optionee
hereby authorizes withholding from payroll and any other amounts payable to Optionee, and otherwise agrees to make adequate provision for any sums
required to satisfy the federal, state, local and foreign tax withholding obligations of the Company or a Subsidiary, if any, which arise in connection with the
Option.
(b)
Upon Optionee’s request and subject to approval by the Board, in its sole discretion, and compliance with any applicable
conditions or restrictions of law, the Company may withhold from fully vested Shares otherwise issuable to Optionee upon the exercise of the Option a
number of whole Shares having a fair market value, determined by the Company as of the date of exercise, not in excess of the minimum amount of tax
required to be withheld by law.
(c)
Optionee may not exercise the Option unless the tax withholding obligations of the Company and/or any Subsidiary are satisfied.
Accordingly, Optionee may not be able to exercise the Option when desired even though the Option is vested, and the Company shall have no obligation to
issue a certificate for such Common Stock.
12.
Notice of Sales Upon Disqualifying Disposition. If the Grant Notice designates this Option as an Incentive Stock Option, Optionee shall
(a) promptly notify the Chief Financial Officer of the Company if Optionee disposes of any of the Shares acquired pursuant to the Option within one (1) year
after the date that Optionee exercises all or part of the Option or within two (2) years after the Date of Grant and (b) provide the Company with a description
of the circumstances of such disposition. Until such time as Optionee disposes of such Shares in a manner consistent with the provisions of this Option
Agreement, unless otherwise expressly authorized by the Company, Optionee shall hold all Shares acquired pursuant to the Option in Optionee’s name (and
not in the name of any nominee) for the one-year period immediately after the exercise of the Option and the two-year period immediately after Date of Grant.
13.
Notice. Any notice required to be given under the terms of this Option Agreement shall be in writing and addressed to the Company in care
of its Corporate Secretary at the office of the Company at 1940 E. Mariposa Avenue, El Segundo, California 90245 and any notice to be given to Optionee
shall be in writing and addressed to Optionee at the address given by Optionee beneath Optionee’s signature to the Grant Notice, or such other address as
either party to this Option Agreement may hereafter designate in writing to the other. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been duly given (a) when
enclosed in a properly sealed envelope addressed as aforesaid, registered or certified and deposited (postage or registration or certification fee prepaid) in a
post office, (b) on the date of personal service, or (c) on the day after sending notice by an overnight delivery service.
14.
Governing Plan Document. The Option is subject to all the provisions of the Plan, the provisions of which are hereby made a part of the
Option, and is further subject to all interpretations, amendments, rules and regulations which may from time to time be promulgated and adopted pursuant to
the Plan. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of the Option and those of the Plan, the provisions of the Plan shall control. The Plan, the Grant
Notice and this Option Agreement constitute the entire agreement of the parties and supersede in their entirety all prior undertakings and agreements of the
Company and Optionee with respect to the subject matter hereof.
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15.
Board Decisions Final and Conclusive. All decisions of the Board with respect to any question arising under the Plan, the Grant Notice or
this Option Agreement shall be final, conclusive and binding upon Optionee. No member of the Board shall be personally liable for any action,
determination or interpretation made in good faith with respect to the Plan, the Grant Notice, this Option Agreement or the Option.
16.
Successors. The Grant Notice and this Option Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of any successor or successors of
the Company. Where the context permits, “Optionee” as used in this Option Agreement shall include Optionee’s executor, administrator or other legal
representative or the person or persons to whom Optionee’s rights pass by will or the applicable laws of descent and distribution.
17.
Compliance with Section 409A of the Code. To the extent applicable, it is intended that the Grant Notice and this Option Agreement and
the Plan comply with the provisions of Section 409A of the Code, so that the income inclusion provisions of Section 409A(a)(1) do not apply to Optionee.
The Grant Notice, this Option Agreement and the Plan shall be administered in a manner consistent with this intent.
18.
Data Protection. Optionee consents that the Company may process Optionee’s personal data, including name, Social Security number,
address and number of Shares purchased hereunder (“Data”) exclusively for the purpose of performing this Option Agreement, in particular in connection
with the Option awarded to Optionee. For this purpose the Data may also be disclosed to and processed by companies outside the Company, e.g., banks
involved.
19.
Country-Specific Terms and Conditions. If this Option Agreement includes an Appendix, then, notwithstanding any other provision of
this Option Agreement to the contrary, the Option shall be subject to the specific terms and conditions, if any, set forth in such Appendix that are applicable
to Optionee’s country of residence, the provisions of which are incorporated in and constitute part of this Option Agreement. Moreover, if Optionee relocates
to one of the countries included in any such Appendix, the specific terms and conditions applicable to such country will apply to the Option to the extent the
Company determines that the application of such terms and conditions is necessary or advisable in order to comply with local law or facilitate the
administration of the Plan or this Option Agreement.
20.
Governing Law. The interpretation, performance, and enforcement of the Grant Notice and this Option Agreement shall be governed by
the laws of the State of Delaware, regardless of the law that might be applied under principles of conflicts of laws.
21.
Counterparts. The Grant Notice may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument.
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Exhibit 10.3
AMENDMENT
TO
PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT
AND
JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS
THIS AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT OF PURCHASE AND SALE AND JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS (this “Amendment”) is dated as of
June 26, 2012 (the “Amendment Date”), by and between M2 Marketplace, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Seller”), and Nautilus Group, Inc., a California
corporation (“Buyer”).
RECITALS
A.
Seller and Buyer are parties to that certain Agreement of Purchase and Sale and Joint Escrow Instructions dated as of February 10, 2012, for
the purchase and sale of certain improved real property located in Santa Monica, California (the “Original Purchase Agreement”).
B.
Buyer and Seller desire to amend the Original Purchase Agreement to allow Buyer to conduct certain additional testing and to address
certain other matters, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Amendment. All capitalized terms used, but not defined herein, shall have the meanings set
forth in the Original Purchase Agreement. The Original Purchase Agreement, together with all previous amendments thereto, and as amended by this
Amendment, is referred to herein as the “Agreement.”
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by the parties, Buyer and
Seller agree to amend the terms of the Original Purchase Agreement as follows:
AGREEMENTS
1.

Amendments.

1.1
Section 2.3 Leaseback Arrangement. The Leaseback arrangement provided for in Section 2.3 of the Original Purchase Agreement and the
Lease (defined in Section 11 of, and attached as Exhibit D to, the Agreement) related to the Leaseback arrangement are hereby deleted in their entirety. Any
and all references to the “Leaseback,” the “Lease,” the “Leaseback Term,” or any other similar language or provisions referring to the lease-back of the
Property after the Closing, are hereby deleted in each and every reference to, or instance in, the Agreement and any and all documents related thereto.
Specifically, without limitation, the following Sections, or references to the Lease in such Sections, are hereby deleted: Section 2.3, Section 11.1(c), Section
11.2(ii), Section 11.7(b)(i) and (ii), and 11.7(c)(ii).

1.2

Section 4.2(b). Section 4.2(b) of the Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced in its entirety as follows:

“4.2(b) Within three (3) business days of the execution of the Amendment, Buyer will deposit with Escrow Holder the additional sum of
One Million Eight Hundred Seventy-Five and No/100 Dollars ($1,875,000.00) (“Additional Deposit”) which will be added to the First Deposit
($750,000.00) currently on deposit with Escrow Holder. Hereinafter, the First Deposit and Additional Deposit shall be and constitute the “Deposit.”
The Deposit shall become non-refundable on the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement. Any and all references to the Second Deposit in
the Original Purchase Agreement are hereby deleted in each and every instance. The Deposit shall not be refundable to Buyer after the Contingency
Date to the extent provided in Section 14 below.”
1.3

Section 5.2. Section 5.2 of the Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced in its entirety as follows:

“5.2
As used herein (i) the term “Opening of Escrow” means February 13, 2012; (ii) the term “Close of Escrow” or “Closing” means
the recording of the Deed (as defined below) in the Official Records of Los Angeles County, California; (iii) the term “Closing Date” means the date
of the Close of Escrow; (iv) the term “Contingency Date” means the date which is forty-five (45) days following the Amendment Date, and (v) the
term “Date of Agreement” means February 10, 2012. The Close of Escrow or Closing shall occur on the date set forth in Seller’s Closing Notice (as
hereinafter defined). Seller shall have the right, upon at least thirty (30) days written notice to Buyer (“Seller’s Closing Notice”), to require Buyer to
close on the transaction as contemplated under the Agreement at any time following the Contingency Date; provided, however, that the Close of
Escrow or Closing Date shall not extend beyond the date which is twelve (12) full months beyond the Amendment Date. Upon Seller’s Closing
Notice, Buyer shall, and is obligated to, close the transaction contemplated under this Agreement. Seller shall vacate the Property within thirty (30)
days after the Closing Date.”
1.4

Section 6.5. Section 6.5 of the Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced in its entirety to read as follows:

“6.5
Warranties Survive Closing. The representations and warranties made in this Agreement shall not merge into any instrument or
conveyance delivered at the Close of Escrow. The representations and warranties of Seller set forth in this Agreement or any documents executed in
connection herewith shall survive for a period of one (1) year following the Close of Escrow (the “Survival Period”), but any action, suit or
proceeding brought by Buyer against Seller under this Agreement or under any such documents shall be commenced and served, if

at all, on or before the end of the Survival Period and, if not commenced and served on or before such date, thereafter shall be void and of no force
and effect.”
1.5
Schedule 6.2(m). Schedule 6.2(m) (Environmental Reports) of the Agreement is hereby amended by adding the following report to the list of
Environmental Reports: Phase I Environmental Site Assessment prepared by Geocon Consultants, Inc., dated June 15, 2012, and shall further hereby be
deemed automatically amended without any further action by any party to include the results of the Work as set forth in the report of Geocon Consultants,
Inc. contemplated by the Workplan once the results become available to Buyer and Seller.
1.6
Section 8.1(a). Section 8.1(a) of the Agreement is hereby amended by adding the following language at end of such Section:
“Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 8.1(a), Seller and Buyer agree that Buyer shall not conduct any further or additional soil,
geological, or environmental testing or investigation other than as expressly permitted in Section 1.9 of the Amendment, and only in accordance with the
terms, conditions and parameters set forth in the Workplan (as defined in Section 1.8 of the Amendment below) and this Amendment.
1.7
Section 8.2. Section 8.2 of the Agreement is hereby amended by adding the following language to the end of such Section:
“Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Buyer’s disapproval of any contingency or condition precedent related to Hazardous Materials or the
environmental condition of the Property shall be governed by, subject to and on the terms and conditions set forth in Section 1.9 of the Amendment.”
1.8

Section 13. Section 13 of the Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced in its entirety to read as follows:

“13.1
In the event of the occurrence of any of the following after the Date of Agreement but prior to the Close of Escrow: (i) the
commencement of any eminent domain or condemnation proceedings with respect to any portion of the Property, or (ii) any casualty which shall
cost in excess of Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000) to repair, Buyer shall have the right to terminate this Agreement until the earlier of
fifteen (15) days after the date Buyer receives written notice of such damage, taking or condemnation, or the Closing Date. If Buyer elects to
terminate this Agreement, both parties shall be relieved of any further obligations hereunder.
13.2
In the event of the occurrence of any casualty to the Property after the Date of Agreement but prior to the Close of Escrow which
shall cost Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000) or less to repair, the obligations of the parties hereunder shall be unaffected and the parties
shall proceed to Closing. In such case, Seller shall, at its option: (i) deliver to Buyer, at the Close of Escrow, the proceeds, if any, of all insurance
coverage applicable to such damage previously received by Seller (or an assignment of all insurance proceeds

applicable thereto); and (ii) Buyer shall receive a credit against the Purchase Price in an amount equal to the reasonable cost, as mutually agreed by
the parties, to repair the damage or destruction which is not covered by insurance, or (ii) repair the casualty. If Seller elects option (i) above, Buyer
shall repair the casualty.”
1.9
Environmental-related Conditions Precedent to Obligations of Buyer. Any environmental contingency or condition precedent in the
Agreement in favor of Buyer shall be deemed satisfied if all of the conditions set forth in this Section 1.9 are fulfilled on or before the Contingency Date (the
“Condition Date”), or if the Buyer waives any such conditions in its sole discretion. In the event any of the conditions set forth in this Section 1.9 are not
fulfilled or waived on or before 6:00 p.m. (local time at the Property) on the Condition Date, either Seller or Buyer may, by written notice to the other party
on or before the Condition Date, terminate the Agreement, whereupon the Deposit shall be returned to Buyer, and all other rights and obligations of each
party under the Agreement shall be at an end except those that expressly survive any termination. If Buyer fails to provide such written notice to Seller on or
before the Condition Date, Buyer shall be deemed to have waived such condition.
(a)
Phase II Sampling. Buyer may cause to be performed the soil gas testing and shallow soil sampling described in the Workplan
prepared by Geocon (“Buyer’s Consultant”), dated June 15, 2012, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A-1 (the “Base Workplan”),
together with the screening levels and tables attached hereto as Exhibit A-2 (the “Screening Levels”; hereinafter, the Base Workplan and Screening
Levels shall be collectively referred to as the “Workplan”) (such testing and related activities explicitly stated in the Workplan, the “Work”).
Seller hereby approves the testing locations and scope of work set forth in the Workplan within the timeframes as described therein, and consents to
Buyer’s Consultant performing the Work on the Real Property, subject to the terms and conditions set forth below in this subparagraph 1.9(a). Seller
shall have the right to have an environmental consultant of Seller’s choice present during all testing and sampling events as well as during any onsite mobile lab analysis of samples. Seller shall have the right to take any duplicate samples as Seller deems necessary. Buyer shall cause the Work
to be commenced and completed promptly following the Amendment Date, within the timeframes set forth in the Workplan, or at a time or times
reasonably agreed upon by Seller and Buyer, and shall not permit any testing or any other activity (including the analysis of any chemical,
constituent, compound, contaminant or any derivative thereof) not explicitly stated in the Workplan on the Real Property other than the Work to be
completed by Buyer or Buyer’s Consultant. If the results of the Work completed by Buyer’s Consultant identify all constituent levels at or below
the “Screening Levels” set forth in the Workplan (the “Thresholds”), or the results are non-detect, then the condition precedent set forth in this
subparagraph 1.9(a) shall be deemed fulfilled. If the results of the Work completed by Buyer’s Consultant identify one or more constituent levels
above the Thresholds, then

Buyer’s Consultant and an environmental consultant selected by Seller (“Seller’s Consultant”) shall each promptly collect and analyze soil gas
and/or soil samples solely from the sampling location(s) at which constituent level(s) were above the Thresholds and shall analyze and have reported
by the laboratory only the constituents which were originally identified by Buyer’s Consultant as being above the Thresholds (the “Second Tests”).
The Second Tests shall be performed in a substantially similar manner as the sampling plan described in the Workplan including, for example, using
the same collection and laboratory analysis methods. Each party shall pay all of the costs and expenses incurred by its consultant. If the results of
each of the Second Tests identify the retested constituents at or below the Thresholds, or the results are non-detect, then the condition precedent set
forth in this subparagraph 1.9(a) shall be deemed fulfilled. If the results of either or both of the Second Tests identifies one or more of the retested
constituents above the Thresholds, then the condition precedent set forth in this subparagraph 1.9(a) shall be deemed unfulfilled, the Agreement
shall terminate and the Deposit shall be returned to Buyer (and neither party shall have any further obligations under the Agreement except to the
extent such obligations expressly survive termination under the Agreement), unless Buyer elects to waive the condition precedent set forth in this
subparagraph 1.9(a) within two (2) business days following Buyer’s receipt of the results of the Second Tests, or Buyer proposes (and Seller agrees to
allow, in its sole discretion) additional testing on the Real Property. Buyer shall send to Seller results of Buyer’s Consultant’s initial testing and
follow-up testing (if any) within twenty-four (24) hours of its receipt thereof and Seller shall send to Buyer results of Seller’s Consultant’s testing (if
any) within twenty-four (24) hours of its receipt thereof. Seller’s consent to the performance of the Work and re-testing procedures described herein
is subject to the following terms and conditions:
(i)
The Work shall be conducted in a manner that will minimize any disturbance to tenants under any leases and will not
unreasonably interfere with the use of the Property by Seller, or damage the Property in any respect. With respect to any Work performed or
occurring within the Building, such Work must be performed after 9:30pm PST and before 8:30am PST and Buyer’s Consultant (and any
subcontractors, agents and representatives) shall not access or be present within the Building other than during the foregoing hours. The
Work shall be conducted in accordance with standards customarily employed in the industry and in compliance with all governmental
laws, rules and regulations. Following each entry by Buyer with respect to the Work on the Real Property, Buyer shall, at its sole expense,
restore the Property to its original condition as existed prior to any such Work in accordance with the time frames described above so as to
minimize any disruption or condition to Seller’s customers and potential customers during normal business hours. Seller shall reasonably
cooperate with Buyer in its performance of the Work but

shall not be obligated to incur any liability or expense in connection therewith.
(ii)
Buyer shall not contact any tenant under any lease without obtaining Seller’s prior written consent and shall not disrupt
Seller’s, or any tenant or invitee’s activities at the Property.
(iii) Buyer agrees that prior to Buyer or Buyer’s Consultant (or Buyer’s Consultant’s subcontractors) entering the Property to
conduct the Work, Buyer shall obtain and maintain, or shall cause each of its consultants, contractors and agents to maintain (and shall
deliver evidence satisfactory to Seller thereof), at no cost or expense to Seller, commercial general liability insurance from an insurer
reasonably acceptable to Seller in the amount of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) with a combined single limit for personal injury or
property damage per occurrence, such policies to name Seller, its directors, officers, members, employees and others as designated by Seller,
as additional insured parties, which insurance shall provide coverage against any claim for personal injury or property damage caused by
Buyer or its consultants, contractors or agents in connection with the Work, and worker’s compensation insurance in such form and in
minimum amounts as are required under state law. Buyer waives all rights against Seller and its consultants, contractors or agents, for
damages or other causes of loss to the extent covered (or coverable) by the property insurance obtained (or required to be obtained
hereunder whether or not such property insurance is actually obtained) pursuant to this Section 1.9(a)(iii) or other property insurance
applicable to the Workplan. Buyer shall require of its consultants, contractors or agents, if any, and the sub-consultants, sub-contractors, or
agents of any of them, by appropriate agreements, written where legally required for validity, similar waivers each in favor of other parties
enumerated herein. The policies shall provide such waivers of subrogation by endorsement or otherwise.
(iv) Buyer shall keep the Property free from all liens and encumbrances arising from or in connection with the Work done or
performed by Buyer or its consultants, contractors or agents (“Buyer Parties”) or otherwise caused by Buyer or Buyer Parties and shall
protect, indemnify, defend and hold Seller harmless from and against any claim for liabilities, losses, costs, expenses (including reasonable
attorneys’ fees), damages or injuries arising out of or resulting from the inspection of the Property by Buyer or Buyer Parties (except to the
extent arising from the mere discovery of existing conditions), except to the extent resulting from the gross negligence or willful
misconduct of Seller, and notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, such obligation to indemnify,

defend, protect and hold harmless Seller for such purpose shall survive Closing or any termination of the Agreement.
(v) In connection with the Work, (i) Buyer and Buyer’s Consultant shall be responsible for safety and security of Buyer’s
Consultant’s employees, contractors and agents, and all tenants and their invitees at the Property and any portion of the Real Property upon
which the Work is being performed, (ii) Buyer’s Consultant shall take all necessary safety precautions to furnish and install all safeguards
reasonably necessary for the prevention of accidents, to provide and maintain a safe work site for the protection of persons and property, to
keep the portion of the Real Property upon which the Work is being performed free from materials and debris, and to otherwise fully comply
with all laws, rules and regulations, including those pertaining to health, safety and accident prevention. Buyer’s Consultant shall comply
with Seller’s safety rules and requirements in place for the Property at the time the Work is being performed, to the extent that such rules
and requirements have been disclosed to Buyer’s Consultant in writing prior to commencement of the Work.
(vi) Buyer shall ensure that Buyer’s Consultant closes or removes any borings or collection or monitoring wells that it creates in
compliance with applicable law and that all soil that is used as fill or replacement material for any soil that is removed due to the Work
shall be compatible with the soil type and landscaping material generally found at the Property and shall be clean fill, free of debris,
contaminants, pollutants or hazardous substances of any kind or in any amount. The Work shall be conducted or supervised by
professionals with appropriate experience relative to the particular activity being conducted at the Real Property.
(vii) Buyer and Buyer’s Consultant acknowledge that the position of pole lines, conduits, water mains, sewers, and other
underground and aboveground utilities and structures is not necessarily shown on existing site plans or drawings, and, where shown, the
accuracy of the position of such utilities and structures is not guaranteed. Before starting Work, Buyer’s Consultant shall inform itself of
the exact location of all such utilities and structures, and shall assume all liability for damage to them caused by the Work.
(viii) Buyer shall provide Seller with a copy of all third party reports, data, tables, and other documents relating to the Work
(excluding internal memoranda and correspondence relating to the Work, and attorney-client work product or privileged information) and
Buyer and Buyer’s Consultant shall keep all such information, data, tables and other

documents confidential, except as required by law. No person or party, including Buyer and Buyer’s Consultant, in possession of such
information shall report or disclose the results or findings derived from the Work to any other third person or party, including without
limitation any government agency or entity, unless (a) such person or party in possession of such information is compelled to make such
disclosure by law and in that case only after providing advance written notice to Seller or (b) such disclosure is to prospective purchasers
from, or lenders to, Buyer after Closing. If the Closing does not occur, Buyer hereby assigns any and all of Buyer’s right, title and interest
in any reports, data, tables and other documents related to the Work.
(x)
Nothing in this Amendment is intended to be, nor shall it be construed as, an admission of liability by Seller for the
conditions existing at, under or from the Property.
In the event the Work and any Second Tests are not completed in accordance with this Section 1.9 on or before 6:00 p.m. (local time at the Property) on the
Condition Date, either party may, by written notice to the other, terminate the Agreement, whereupon the Deposit shall be returned to Buyer, and all other
rights and obligations of each party under the Agreement shall be at an end except those that expressly survive any termination.
(b) Defective Condition. If the Work or any of the retesting to be conducted pursuant to subparagraph 1.9(a) above reveals the presence
of any constituent above a Threshold, whether or not in violation of any applicable law, ordinance, code, regulation or decree of any governmental
authority having jurisdiction over the Property (a “Defective Condition”) and Buyer does not terminate the Agreement to the extent permitted under
this Section 1.9, then Buyer (1) will be deemed to have waived the Defective Condition, and (2) shall release and forever discharge Seller and Seller
Related Parties from any and all rights, claims and demands at law or in equity, whether known or unknown at the time of the Agreement or Closing,
which Buyer has or may have in the future, arising out of the Defective Condition, including, without limitation, all claims in tort or contract and
any claim for indemnification or contribution arising under environmental laws. The provisions of this section shall survive the closing.
The waivers and releases set forth in the immediately preceding paragraph include claims of which Buyer is presently unaware or which Buyer does
not presently suspect to exist which, if known by Buyer, would materially affect Buyer’s waiver or release of Seller and the other parties referenced in this
Section. Buyer specifically waives the provision of California Civil Code Section 1542, which provides as follows:

“A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR EXPECT TO EXIST IN HIS FAVOR
AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF KNOWN TO HIM MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED THE SETTLEMENT WITH THE
DEBTOR.”
INITIALS:
2.

Buyer

/s/ RM

Miscellaneous.

2.1
Incorporation; Full Force and Effect. The Original Purchase Agreement, as modified by this Amendment is incorporated herein in its
entirety, by this reference. Other than as set forth herein, the Agreement shall remain unmodified and in full force and effect. The Agreement, including the
Exhibits and Schedules thereto, and this Amendment, including the Exhibits and Schedules hereto, contain the entire agreement between the parties
pertaining to the subject matter hereof and together fully supersede all prior written or oral agreements and understandings between the parties pertaining to
such subject matter. All references to the Agreement, in the Agreement or in any other document, shall mean the Agreement, as amended by this Amendment.
2.2
Captions. The section and other headings contained in this Amendment are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the meaning or
interpretation hereof.
2.3
Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original, but all of which, when taken
together, shall constitute but one instrument.
2.4
Conflict. To the extent of any conflict between the Agreement and this Amendment with respect to the matters addressed herein, the terms
and conditions of this Amendment shall govern and control.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Seller and Buyer have executed and delivered this Amendment as of the date and year set forth above.
BUYER:

SELLER:

NAUTILUS GROUP, INC.,
a California corporation

M2 MARKETPLACE, INC.,
a Delaware corporation

By:
Name:
Title:

By:
Name:
Title:

/s/ Randall Miller
Randall Miller
President

/s/ Dan DeVries
Dan DeVries
President

EXHIBIT A-1
Base Workplan
(See Attached)

Proposal No. LP-2012-168
June 15, 2012
VIA EMAIL
Mr. Randy Miller
Nautilus Group
2201 Dwight Way
Berkeley, CA 94704
Subject:

PROPOSAL FOR SOIL VAPOR AND GEOPHYSICAL SURVEYS
AND LIMITED SOIL SAMPLING AND ANALYSIS — REVISED 6/15/12
1501 THROUGH 1515 WILSHIRE BOULEVARD
AND 1137 THROUGH 1147 15 TH STREET
SANTA MONICA, CALIFORNIA

Dear Mr. Miller:
In accordance with your request, Geocon West. Inc. presents this proposal to perform soil vapor and geophysical surveys and limited soil sampling and
analysis at the above-referenced property (the Site).
PURPOSE
As you are aware, we have completed a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) of the Site. Results of the Phase I ESA are documented in our report
dated May 18, 2012. Findings indicated that dry cleaners, a gasoline station, and a fire department station were previously on the Site and that an incinerator
is at the Site. The Phase I ESA identified the following recognized environmental conditions (RECs):
·

The potential that on-site soil has been impacted by waste dry-cleaning liquids (e.g., perchloroethylene, aka tetrachloroethylene) or other volatile
commercial cleaning products due to on-site disposal, spillage, and/or leakage during former dry cleaning activities (if any) and/or petroleum
products due to storage-container or dispenser leakage/spillage associated with former on-site service station or fire department activities (if any).

·

The potential that underground storage tanks (USTs) and appurtenances associated with the former service or fire station are at the Site.

·

The potential that soil in an unpaved area immediately adjacent to the incinerator has been impacted by metals and/or other chemicals of potential
concern (COPCs) due to use of the incinerator.

You requested this proposal to perform additional investigation in order to address the subject RECs. It is our understanding that the completion of the soil
vapor and geophysical surveys and limited soil sampling and analysis is part of the “due diligence” process prior to purchasing the Site.
3303 N. San Fernando Blvd., Suite 100 · Burbank, CA 91504 · Telephone (818) 841-8388 · Fax (818) 841-1704

PROPOSED SCOPE OF SERVICES
We prepared this proposal to provide a scope of services, estimated cost, and anticipated schedule to provide preliminary information regarding potential
impacts to site soil and the presence of USTs. Our proposed scope of services does not provide for a complete, comprehensive characterization of the Site with
respect to the RECs that were identified or all potential COPCs. Information obtained from our proposed investigation should be used for due diligence
screening to assess the need for potential additional investigation.
Our proposed scope of services will be accomplished under the following three tasks:
Task 1: Pre-field Activities
·

Retain the services of Optimal Technology (http://www.optimaltechnology.com) to install soil vapor probes and provide a mobile laboratory to
analyze soil vapor samples in order evaluate the impact to site soil at selected areas due to volatile organic compounds (VOCs), if any.

·

Retain the services of Spectrum Geophysics (http://www.spectrum-geophysics.com) to perform a geophysical survey of selected areas to identify
the location of detectable USTs, if any.

·

Retain the services of Advanced Technology Laboratories (ATL) (http://www.atlglobal.com) to perform chemical analyses of soil samples obtained
from the unpaved area adjacent to the incinerator.

·

Contact the local public utilities via Underground Service Alert (USA) to determine subsurface public utilities and conduits in proximity to the
proposed boring locations.

·

Coordination with the Site owners and subcontactors regarding field work.

Task 2: Field Activities and Analytical Testing
Activities associated with the soil vapor and geophysical surveys and soil sampling adjacent to the incinerator are summarized below:
Soil Vapor Survey: Under supervision of on-site Geocon personnel, the soil vapor survey will be performed by Optimal Technology in general accordance
with the State of California Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) guidelines. The following summarizes proposed activities:
·

Collect one soil vapor sample from each of 12 soil vapor probes installed using hydraulic hand tools. Soil vapor probe locations will be selected to
provide information regarding soil conditions at areas likely associated with former dry cleaners and service and fire stations. Approximate sample
locations are indicated on the enclosed Figure 1 (“Approximate Sampling Locations”). It is our understanding that work inside the MacMall Retail
Store must be completed before the store opens at 9 A.M.

·

The probes will be advanced and samples will be collected at a depth of approximately five feet, depending on site conditions.

·

The samples (plus purge test and duplicate samples) will be tested with an on-site mobile laboratory for VOCs in accordance with modified EPA
Test Method 8260B.
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·

The probes will be removed and the boreholes will be backfilled with bentonite and pavement will be patched. For sample locations inside the
MacMall Retail Store, an approximately 6- by 6-inch area of floor tile or carpet will be removed to access the building foundation. Following
backfill of the boreholes, restoration of the floor-covering (i.e., patching) will be the responsibility of the building owner.

Geophysical Survey: Under supervision of on-site Geocon personnel, Spectrum Geophysics will employ high sensitivity metal detection, shallow focus
terrain conductivity, ground penetrating radar, and electromagnetic utility-locating methods, as appropriate. The areas of investigation will include the onsite “courtyard” and parking areas. It should be noted that the geophysical survey cannot assess areas of the Site beneath structures or parked vehicles.
Soil Sampling Adjacent to the Incinerator: Soil sampling will be performed by Geocon personnel. The following summarizes proposed activities:
·

One hand-auger boring will be advanced to a depth of approximately five feet in the unpaved area adjacent to the incinerator.

·

Three soil samples will be obtained as follows: (1) from ground surface to a depth of approximately six inches, (2) from a depth of approximately
2.5 to 3 feet, and (3) from a depth of approximately 4.5 to 5 feet. The samples will be collected in new laboratory-provided sample containers and
stored in an ice chest appropriately chilled for transportation to the laboratory.

·

The soil samples will be submitted to ATL for analysis of Title 22 metals and polyaromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs) by EPA Test Methods 6010B and
8310, respectively. The samples will be analyzed on a standard 10-day turn-around-time.

Task 3: Data Analysis and Report Preparation
Following completion of field activities and the receipt/review of analytical and geophysical data, we will prepare a report summarizing the field activities
performed, results of the investigations, and our evaluation of the data and the need for additional investigation or no further action. The report will include
the following:
·
·
·
·
·

Scope of services performed
Observations during the field activities
Summary of analytical and geophysical survey results
Figures showing sample locations and data interpretations, as appropriate
Laboratory analytical and geophysical survey reports
ANTICPATED SCHEDULE

It is anticipated that our report will be completed within approximately six weeks of your authorization to proceed. We anticipate that field work will
commence within approximately two weeks of receiving authorization to proceed but that will depend on the availability of our subcontractors. It is
anticipated that field work will require one day. Our report will be completed within approximately two weeks following receipt of analytical and
geophysical reports.
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PROPOSED FEE
We propose to perform the scope of services outlined herein for an estimated fee as described in the schedule attached to this proposal.
Our services will be provided in accordance with the enclosed 2010 Schedule of Fees. If unanticipated field conditions are encountered that require a
significant modification to our proposed scope of services and/or require an increase in the estimated fee, we will not proceed with the modified scope or
increased amount without obtaining your authorization.
It is mutually agreed between Nautilus Group and Geocon that all services afforded and work performed by Geocon are provided pursuant to Civil Code
Section 2782. et. seq., and such agreement is expressly integrated into and made a part of any and all contracts or agreements entered into between the parties.
Our proposed fee is valid for a period of 90 days from the date of this proposal. Our fee includes the submittal of two PDF copies of our report on CDs. Drafts
or additional copies may be requested for an additional administrative fee.
We have prepared this proposal with the understanding that this is not a prevailing wage project. If the Nautilus Group should conclude that this is a
prevailing wage project, please so advise us in writing prior to commencement of proposed activities. If failure to so advise Geocon results in the imposition
of fines, penalties, claims or damages against Geocon. Nautilus Group agrees to reimburse Geocon for all costs and expenses.
We request that available site plans be provided to us prior to field work that will show the locations of all underground utility lines and structures as well as
the location of any sensitive natural habitats and/or archaeological sites. We will not be responsible for damage to any such lines, structures, vegetation, or
archaeological sites that are not shown accurately on plans provided to us.
EXECUTION OF CONTRACT
Geocon proposes to provide the services described herein on a Time and Materials basis in accordance with the previously negotiated and executed Terms
and Conditions for Performance of Services (“TCPS”), dated April 25, 2012, and enclosed 2010 Schedule of Fees. However, other than as set forth herein, all
of the terms and conditions of the TCPS and all exhibits attached thereto shall remain in full force and effect. Except to the extent specifically set forth
herein, this Acknowledgment specifically incorporates by this reference all the
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terms and conditions of the TCPS and all exhibits attached thereto as though set forth in full herein. To the extent of any inconsistency between this
Acknowledgment and the TCPS, this Acknowledgment shall control.
Per the TCPS, invoices will be submitted at four-week intervals and will be itemized to reflect only the actual time and costs incurred. Costs for outside
services and materials including, but not limited to, equipment rental, laboratory testing, and incidental materials, will be invoiced at cost plus 15%, as
stipulated in the TCPS.
Please return one wet-signed copy of this acknowledgement letter to our office. The signed acknowledgement letter will serve as authorization to proceed.
Please let us know if you have questions or require additional information or services.
Sincerely,
GEOCON WEST, INC.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
CLIENT:
Authorized By:
Russell Anthony, PG, REA II
Senior Geologist

Print Name:
Title:
Date:

(1)

Addressee

Enclosures:

Figure 1: Approximate Sampling Locations
Schedule of Fees 2010
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS
1.

Listed are typical charges for the services most frequently performed by Geocon. Prices for unlisted services as well as special quotations for programs
involving volume work will be provided upon request. Laboratory test prices shown are for laboratory work only, and include reporting of routine
results not calling for comments, recommendations or conclusions.

2.

All sampling and testing is conducted in substantial conformance with the latest applicable or designated specifications of the American Society for
Testing and Materials, Caltrans, American Association of State Highway Officials, or other pertinent agencies.

3.

Saturday and overtime hours are charged at time and one-half, Sundays and holidays at double time. Per diem is $125.00 per day when location of
work dictates.

4.

Field tests and instrumentation installation such as plate bearing, pile load, vane shear, piecometer, slope inclinometer, and other special tests will be
charged at applicable hourly rates. Equipment and materials will be billed at cost plus 15%. Outside services including subcontractors and rental of
special equipment are billed at cost plus 15%. Hourly services are billed portal to portal from closest office in accordance with the stated hourly rates
herein, with a minimum two-hour charge.

5.

A surcharge of $25.00 per hour will be added to the Professional Services classifications indicated with an asterisk (*) on the Schedule of Fees in order
to comply with the prevailing wage requirements of California Labor Code $720, et. seq.

6.

Invoices will be submitted at four-week intervals. Terms of payment are net upon presentation of invoice. Invoices become delinquent thirty (30) days
from invoice date and subject to one and one-half percent (I-1/2%) service charge per month, or the maximum rate allowed by law, whichever is lower.
If Client objects to all or any portion of any invoice. Client will so notify Geocon in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of the invoice date,
identify the cause of disagreement, and pay that portion of the invoice not in dispute. The parties will immediately make every effort to settle the
disputed portion of the invoice. Payment on delinquent invoices will first be applied to accrued interest and then to the principal amount. All time spent
and expenses incurred (including any attorney’s fees and costs) in connection with collection of any delinquent amount will be paid by Client to
Geocon per Geocon’s current fee schedule.

7.

Many risks potentially affect Geocon by virtue of entering into this agreement to perform professional engineering services on behalf of Client. The
principal risk is the potential for human error by Geocon. For Client to obtain the benefit of a fee which includes a nominal allowance for dealing with
our liability, Client agrees to limit our liability to Client and to all other parties for claims arising out of our performance of the services described in
the agreement. The aggregate liability of Geocon will not exceed $100,000 for negligent professional acts, errors, or omissions, including attorney’s
fees and costs which may be awarded to the prevailing party, and Client agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Geocon from and against all liabilities
in excess of the monetary limit established above.
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Exhibit A-2
Screening Levels
(See Attached)

TABLE 1
LIST OF SCREENING LEVELS
1501 THROUGH 1515 WILSHIRE BOULEVARD
AND 1137 THROUGH 1147 15 TH STREET
SANTA MONICA, CALIFORNIA
GEOCON PROPOSAL NO. LP-2012-168
MAY 28, 2012
Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs)

Analyte

Acetone
2-Butanone (aka MEK)
Benzene
Carbon tetrachloride
Chlorobenzene
Chloroethane
Cyclohexane
Dichlorodifluoromethane
1,1-Dichloroethane
1,2-Dichloroethane
1,1-Dichloroethene
cis-1,2-Dichloroethene
trans-1,2-Dichloroethene
Ethylbenzene
Methylene chloride
4-Methyl-2-Pentanone
1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane
1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane
1

Shallow Soil Gas
(µg/m3 )
Commercial/
Industrial
Land Use

Sources

—
3.83E+07
—
6.31E+06
—
1.22E+02
—
8.46E+01
—
1.27E+06
—
3.63E+07
—
7.60E+06
—
1.28E+05
—
2.22E+03
—
1.67E+02
—
8.79E+04
—
4.44E+04
—
8.87E+04
—
1.40E+03
—
3.49E+03
—
3.81E+06
—
4.82E+02
—
6.15E+01

EPA RSL
ENVIRON1
EPA RSL
ENVIRON1
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
ENVIRON1
EPA RSL
ENVIRON1
EPA RSL
ENVIRON1
EPA RSL
ENVIRON1
EPA RSL
ENVIRON1
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
ENVIRON1
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
ENVIRON1
EPA RSL
ENVIRON1
EPA RSL
ENVIRON1
EPA RSL
ENVIRON1

Analyte

Tetrachloroethene (aka PCE)
Toluene
1,1,1-Trichloroethane
1,1,2-Trichloroethane
Trichloroethene (aka TCE)
TCE updated toxicity values
Trichlorofluoromethane
1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (aka Freon 113)
Vinyl chloride
m-Xylenes
p-Xylenes
o-Xylenes

Shallow Soil Gas
(µg/m3 )
Commercial/
Industrial
Land Use

Sources

—
6.03E+02
—
3.78E+05
—
2.79E+06
—
2.21E+02
—
1.77E+03
8.64E+02
—
8.80E+05
—
3.80E+07
—
4.48E+01
—
8.87E+05
—
8.87E+05
—
8.87E+05

EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
ENVIRON1
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
ENVIRON2
EPA RSL
ENVIRON1
EPA RSL
ENVIRON1
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL

Notes:
µg/m3 = microgram per cubic meter — = No data available
EPA RSL = U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Regional Screening Levels (EPA, 2012. “Regional Screening Levels (RSL) Summary Table April 2012.”
Cal/EPA CHHSL = California EPA — California Human Health Screening Levels (Cal/EPA, 2005.”Use of California Human Health Screening Levels
[CHHSLs] in Evaluation of Contaminated Properties” January 2005). Updated Table Sept. 23, 2010.
ENVIRON1 = ENVIRON developed screening levels using the same methodology used by Cal/EPA to derive CHHSLs (2005). ENVIRON-derived screening
levels indicated in Bold.
ENVIRON2 = ENVIRON developed screening levels for TCE using the same methodology used by Cal/EPA to derive CHHSLs (2005) and updated toxicity
values from USEPA.
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TABLE 2
LIST OF SCREENING LEVELS
1501 THROUGH 1515 WILSHIRE BOULEVARD
AND 1137 THROUGH 1147 15 TH STREET
SANTA MONICA, CALIFORNIA
GEOCON PROPOSAL NO. LP-2012-168
MAY 28, 2012
Polyaromatic Hydrocarbons (PAHs)

Analyte

Acenaphthene
Acenaphthylene
Anthracene
Benzo[a]anthracene
Benzo[b]fluoranthene
Benzo[k]fluoranthene
Benzo[a]pyrene
Benzo[g,h,i]perylene
Chrysene
Dibenzo[a,h]anthracene
Fluoranthene
Fluorene
Indeno[1 ,2,3-cd]pyrene
Naphthalene
Phenanthrene
Pyrene
1

Soil
(mg/kg)
Commercial/
Industrial
Land Use

Sources

3.3E+04
—
1.7E+04
—
1.7E+05
—
2.1E+00
—
2.1E+00
—
2.1E+00
—
2.1E-01
1.3E-01
1.7E+04
—
2.1E+02
—
2.1E-01
—
2.2E+04
—
2.2E+04
—
2.1E+00
—
1.8E+01
—
1.7E+04
—
1.7E+04
—

EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
ENVIRON1
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
ENVIRON1
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
ENVIRON1
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL

Title 22 Metals

Analyte

Antimony
Arsenic
Barium
Beryllium
Cadmium
Chromium III
Cobalt
Copper
Lead
Mercury
Molybdenum
Nickel
Selenium
Silver
Thallium
Vanadium
Zinc
2

Soil
(mg/kg)
Commercial/
Industrial
Land Use

Sources

4.1E+02
3.8E+02
1.6E+00
2.4E-01
1.9E+05
6.3E+04
2.0E+03
1.9E+02
8.0E+02
7.5E+00
1.5E+06
1.0E+05
3.0E+02
3.2E+03
4.1E+04
3.8E+04
8.0E+02
3.2E+02
4.3E+01
1.8E+02
5.1E+03
4.8E+03
2.0E+04
1.6E+04
5.1E+03
4.8E+03
5.1E+03
4.8E+03
1.0E+01
6.3E+01
5.2E+03
6.7E+03
3.1E+05
1.0E+05

EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL1
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL2
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL
EPA RSL
Cal/EPA CHHSL

Notes:
mg/kg = milligram per kilogram — = No data available
EPA RSL = U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Regional Screening Levels (EPA, 2012. “Regional Screening Levels (RSL) Summary Table April 2012”
Cal/EPA CHHSL = California EPA — California Human Health Screening Levels (Cal/EPA, 2005.”Use of California Human Health Screening Levels
[CHHSLs] in Evaluation of Contaminated Properties” January 2005).
Cal/EPA CHHSL1 = California EPA — Revised California Human Health Screening Levels for Beryllium, March 2009.
Cal/EPA CHHSL2 = California EPA — Revised California Human Health Screening Levels for Lead, September 2009.
ENVIRON1 = Based on structure-activity considerations, the commercial/industrial soil RSL for pyrene is used as a surrogate screening level for this PAH.
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EXHIBIT 31.1
PC MALL, INC.
CERTIFICATION
I, Frank F. Khulusi, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of PC Mall, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting , or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.
Date: August 9, 2012
/s/ Frank F. Khulusi
Frank F. Khulusi
Chief Executive Officer

EXHIBIT 31.2
PC MALL, INC.
CERTIFICATION
I, Brandon H. LaVerne, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q of PC Mall, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting , or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.
Date: August 9, 2012
/s/ Brandon H. LaVerne
Brandon H. LaVerne
Chief Financial Officer

EXHIBIT 32.1
PC MALL, INC.
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
(AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002)
In connection with the Quarterly Report of PC Mall, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2012 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, Frank F. Khulusi, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certify as of the date hereof, solely for
purposes of Title 18, Chapter 63, Section 1350 of the United States Code, that to the best of my knowledge:
(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and
(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company at
the dates and for the periods indicated.
This Certification has not been, and shall not be deemed, “filed” with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
August 9, 2012
/s/ Frank F. Khulusi
Frank F. Khulusi
Chief Executive Officer

EXHIBIT 32.2
PC MALL, INC.
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
(AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002)
In connection with the Quarterly Report of PC Mall, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2012 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, Brandon H. LaVerne, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certify as of the date hereof, solely for
purposes of Title 18, Chapter 63, Section 1350 of the United States Code, that to the best of my knowledge:
(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and
(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company at
the dates and for the periods indicated.
This Certification has not been, and shall not be deemed, “filed” with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
August 9, 2012
/s/ Brandon H. LaVerne
Brandon H. LaVerne
Chief Financial Officer

